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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review
For the year ended 31 August 2012

Our Business

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc {"VGM” or “Group”) explores, discovers, and develops gold mining operations The Group 1s
primanly focused on its operations on the Pacific Istand of Viti Levu, Fiji

VGM 1 the owner of the longest producing gold mine in Fiy Operating for over 756 years, the mine has produced in excess
of seven million ounces of gold VGM acquired the mine in 2008 and aims to reach a sustainable and profitable production
level We are currently in our next phase of expansion al the mine, increasing our production from the current base of
approximately 50,000 ounces per annum The mine currently has 4 2 million ounces of Mineral Resources and 700,000
ounces of Mineral Reserves

The Vatukoula Gold Mine s located 1n the norlhern part of Fiy's mam 1sland, approximately ten kilometres inland from the
coast and within the Tavua Basin The mine I1s located at the foot of the hills that make up the Tavua volcamc crater

The mine operates within three Spectal Mining Leases which cover a total area of 1,255 hectares In addition VGM has the
right to explore areas outside the current mining leases via Specral Prospecting Licenses that cover over 19,000 hectares
of the surrounding Tavua volcano

The Vatukoula Gold Mine s currently both an open pit and underground operation, however in the medium-term it will
become predominantly an underground mine Underground production 1s sourced from four miming areas, Smith Shaft,
Philp Shaft, R1 Cayzer Shaft and Emperor Decline The Smith and Philip Shafts, and the Emperor Decline serve as the
main accesses to the underground workings for personnel and matenals, and are used for ore and waste haulage

Once the ore 1s hauled to the surface it 1s crushed, ennched and refined at our on-site treatment plant, to produce Gold
Dore Gold Dore produced at the mine 1s typically 80% gold, 19% silver and 1% base metals such as copper and iron The
Gold Dore 1s sold to the Perth Mint in Australia

VGM has onsite workshops, assay labs and produces its own power via diesel generators

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc 15 a UK public company with its headquarters in London We are listed on the AIM market of
the London Stock Exchange under the symbol VGM The Group reports in Pounds Sterling (£) in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union

Forward-looking Statement

Thus annual report contains “forward-eoking mformation  which may include but 1s not mited to statements with respect to the future financial and operating performance of VGM 1is
subsidianes, investment assets and afffiated compames its mirung projects the future pace of gold, the estimation of menersl resources, the realisation of mineral resource estmates
costs of production cepital and exploration expenditures costs and tming of the development of new deposits, costs and tmuing of the developmant of new ore zonas, costs and iming
of future exploration requrements for additonal capital, governmentat regulation of mining operations and exploratiorn operations tming and recept of approvals, licenses, and
conversions under The Republic of Fiy and other appheable mineral legislation, environmental nisks, tile disputes or claims lmitations of Insurance coverage and the tming and
possible outcome of pending libgatian and regulatory mattars

Often but not atways, forward-looking statements can be wentfied by the use of words such as 'plans, expects, 'is expected, budget, scheduled ‘esimates forecasts, intends
‘antiapates or believes' or vanabons (including negative vanations) of such words and phrases or state thal certain actons, events of results may' could ‘would, mught or ‘wall be
taken, oocur or be achieved Forward-Jooking statements involve known and unknown nsks uncertanties and other factors that may cause the aciual results, performance or
achievemenits of VGM and/or #s subsidianies investment assets andfor its affiated compames to be matenally different from any future rasults performance or achievements
expressed or implied by the forward-looking stataments

Such factors inddude among others general business economic competitve, politcal and social unceriainties the actual results of current exploration actviies, condusions of
economic avaluations and studes fluctuations m the value of UK Pounds Stering ralative to the Urited States Dollar, Fpan Dollar Australian Dollar and other foreign aurrencies
changes in proyect parameters as plans continue (o be refined, future pnces of Gold, possible vanations of ore grade or recovery rates falure of plant, eqrpment or processes 1o
operate as anhcapated accidents labour disputes and other nsks of the muning industny political instebility adverse weather conditions insurracton or war; delays w1 cbtayung
governmental approvals or financing o in the complation of development or construction acimties

Although VGM has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual actions, events or results to differ matenally from those descnbed in forward-looking statements there
may well be other factors that cause actions events or results to differ from those curmently anticipated, esimated or intended

ForwardHooking statements contained herein are made a5 of the date of s annual report and VIGM disclaims any obligation to update any forwarddooking statements whether as a
result of new information, future averts or results or otherwmise  There can be no assurance that forward-Hooking statements will prove (o be accurate, as actual results and future
events could diffar matenally from those anticipated in such statements Accordingly readers should not place undue retiance on forward-locking statements dua to the nherent
uncertanty theren Nothuing in this annual report should be construad as a profit foracast
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Our Strategy

We have a clear strategy to deliver to our shareholders the full potential of the Vatukoula Gotd Mine We aim to achieve

this by focusing on four key strategic pnonties

Strategic Prionty

Operaticnal Drivers

Targets in 2012

Achievements in 2012

Expand Current production Develop enough underground Achieve a production of 52,616 ounces shipped
from the Vatukoula access, or development, 65,000 ounces Production was limited by the
Gold Mine to a allowing access to the water ingress in Apnl 2012 and
targeted sustainable required mining areas and local geological vanations which
and profitable rate of therefore tonnages and grade hampered access to some of the
production orebodies
Achieve normal and 24,653 metres of operating and
capital development capital development carned out
metres of 26,000 metres  Development was imited by the
water ingress in Apnl 2012 and
local geological vanations which
hampered access to some of the
orebodies
A significant increase in capital
development to 4,975 metres
compared to 2,307 metres In
201
Sustain The targeted Further define the large Begin reserve and Over 24,000 resource definition
production rate rmineral resource inventory resource drilling metres drilled in the current
beyond current and converting this to Proven programme with the year Increase in Measured
Mineral Reserves and Probable Mineral objective of iIncreasing Resources of 7%
Reserves to both replace our Mineral Reserve
ounces mined and increase base
the current Mineral Reserve
base
Optimise Qur working practices Target key operatonal drivers  Further negotiations with ~ Final version of memorandum of
and working and costs that have high Fiy Sugar Corporation understanding agreed The
relationships to target internal rates of return and low  (“FSC") with the aim of Company 1s awaiting signature
lower unit costs on a capital costs signing a memorandum by the FSC
per tonne basis of understanding
Our involvement in this project
via an off-take agreement on the
power produced froin the plant
will approximately halve our
power costs
Continue bio-oxidation During the year testing resulted
leach testing In 94% recovernes
Complete tendering Tendenng complete on
process on key explosives resulting in a 10%
consumables at the saving In unit costs
mine
Grow Through greenfield Evaluate, define and explore Corplete Mineral 51 rllren tonnes at 0 9 grams

opportunities n the
area surrounding the
Vatukoula Gold Mine

the Special Prospecting
Licenses within the Tavua
Basin

Resource statements on
surface deposits

per tonne identified as Inferred
Mineral Resource in the current
year

We operate in a responsible manner in relation to our pecple, the environment and the communities that we inhabit As a
business these elements are important in the achievement of our strategic pnonties
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Operational and Financial Highlights 2011/2012

Financial

¢  Turnover of £54 9 milhion (2011 £47 9 million) — vaniance dnven by hugher gold pnces

. EBITDA loss of (£1 6 mithon) (2011 profit of £2 2 mullion) — as a result of increase in put costs
. Loss for the penod of £7 1 millon (2011 Loss £2 3 rmullion)

. Continued capital investment of £16 1 mithon (2011 £11 mihion)

. Completion of £5 4 million equity ptacing through the 1ssue of 9 million shares in Apnl 2012

. Cash position of £2 4 million at year-end

Operational

«  Gold shipped was 52,616 ounces for the year ended August 2012

. Capntal development more than doubled compared to last year This increase 1s the result of continued investment in
mine infrastructure, which wilt allow us access to high-grade ore bodies, such as the Cayzer / Pnnce

. Main underground capital development projects are on target
o Decline Philip Shaft expected to hole into 20 level dunng the first quarter of 2013
o Decline to access Cayzer / Pnnce on target and we anticipate being able to mine from this orebedy in March

2013

Resource Development and Exploration

. Measured Mineral Resource base increased by 7% to 7 7 million tonnes at 6 2 grams of gold per tonne (1 5 milllon
ounces)

. Completed Inferred Mineral Resource estimation at the Walkatakata surface deposit, 5 1 million tonnes dentified at
0 9 grams of gold per tonne (0 1 midlion ounces)

. Intersected three new high-grade mineralised structures at Vatukoula, subsequently named the Nielsen Deposit
Significant composite mineralised intersections include
« 124 7 grams of gold per tonne over 0 46 metres,
« 33 60 grams of gold per tonne over 2 86 metres,
e 25 46 grams of gold per tonne over 1 07 metres, and
e 39 00 grams of gold per tonne over 0 48 metres
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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

In December 2011, | wrote that many of the democracies of the World were discovenng the benefits of the pnnting press

This discovery would be beneficial to the price of gold in the medium-term, as gold regained its hustonc role as a store of
value Whenever politicians cloak an achon with a new description, warning bells nng Quanttative Easing has become
the accepiable name for ‘printing money’ What does it mean? Easing means reducing pain or difficulty, quanttative
means ‘relating to or concerned with quantity’ The complete phrase therefore means ‘reducing the pain or difficulty by
adjusting the quantity of something’, presumably money a wonderfully opaque description for debasing the value of
currency

Last year, | reflected that global gold produchon had not varnied very greatly year on year, 4,000 tonnes were mimed in
2003 and 4,500 tonnes in 2011 Global reserves of gold total approximately 171,000 tonnes, held by vanous groups in the
commercial, fiscat and investment sectors jewellery accounts for 50%, the Central Banks 17% and private investors 19%
The re-branding of gold as ‘money’ 1s reflected in the records of the Central Banks From 1990 until 2007, Central Banks
were net sellers of gold Since 2008, they have been net buyers of gold, averaging purchases of about 400 tonnes a year
It 15 not clear who supervises the accounts of the Central Banks, as some of them, including the Federal Reserve Bank,
are shll pnvately owned

Whilst there has been a tightering in the availability of gold in reserve form, the precious metal ore has become
increasingly difficult to find Durning the 1990s, it was common to have global discovenes of 100 milhion ounces per year In
2009, an additional 19 milion ounces were discovered, but this fell to 10 mithon ounces n 2010 and perhaps 3 million
ounces 1n 2011 With the difficulty of discovering new reserves has come the realisation that the ‘low-hanging frut’ has
already been discovered and that grades of new discoveries are likely to follow the path of the last few years, trending
downwards from 2 2g/t in 2002 to perhaps 1 4 g/t in 2011

Not only has success with the dnll bit proved globally elusive, but the cost of extracting that gold has also climbed
dramatically Cash costs are always used when comparing gold companies’ performances, but in reality 1otal costs should
be used for peer group compansons The average total cost of producing an ounce of gold was over US$1,000 per ounce
in 2011 and 1s likely to be about US$1,300 for 2012 In 2002, the total cost of producing an ounce of gold was US$500 [n
addition there was a recent study by CIBC that put the replacement cost for an cunce of gold nght at US$1,700

This year has been a difficult one for Vatukoula Grades extracted from the mine remamned static as management pressed
ahead to reach the deeper, ncher grades in the lower levels of the Philip Shaft There was more careful allocatien of ore
going into the imil’, wath the decline snaking down to Level 20 in Philip Shaft This 1s the 'guts’ of the mine, where the mmne
planners have been concentrating development It has been apparent for some time that the mine would need more
investment and since March 2012 management has been in discussion with strategic shareholders in the Far East A
Chinese investment company, Zhongrun Resource Investment Company ("Zhongrun”) subscnbed for 9 million shares in
Apnil 2012 1 am happy to report that post year-end Zhongrun, has taken up a further placement of 20 million shares
Together these investments make Zhongrun the largest shareholder in the Company, with a holding of approximately
25% Dave Paxton, our CEQ, will address this and the general operational record in his own statement

Moving forward, 1 am confident that the actions of our Mine Management and Operational Teams took this year, supported
by the Board, will help to position your company to meet its preduchion targets

As we go into 2013, | remain optimistic about the prospects for our industry, and in particular, cur company Once again, |
take this opporturuty to thank our hard working and dedicated team and acknowledge the support provided 1o the company
by all our stakeholders and supplers

Gl o

Colin Orr-Ewing
Non-Executive Chairman
9 January 2013




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review
For the year ended 31 August 2012

Chief Executive Officer's Statement

During the last twelve months we have made significant operational progress with increased capital development rates
and increases n total underground tonnes mined However dunng the year we faced two penods of heavy ranfall that
caused temporary disruptions in production The rainfall, together with unexpected local geological vanations in the
Matanagata ore body prevented us from achieving our stated production target

To mitigate against disruptions caused by heavy rainfall several imtiztives were introduced to increase pumping capacity
and to Irmit inflow into mine workings The pumping inthatives have exceeded our expectations and will allow access much
earler than previously estimated to some higher-grade areas of the mine that have been flooded for many years

Despite the heavy ranfall expenenced in January and Apnl of this year all our mamn development drives remain on target
Operating and Financial Performance

VGM sold 52,616 ounces of gold in the year at an average cost of US$1,627 per ounce The main dnver to the higher
cash cost per ounce was the increased unit cost per tonne QOperating costs on a per tonne basis have increased to
US$179 overall, this increase I1s pnmarily driven by higher fuel prices and heavy vehicle consumables Given that on-site
diesel generators provide all our power requirements, we are particularly sensitive to medium term increases n fuel prices
40% of the total increase in mining costs expenenced this year was the result of tugher diesel prices

The positive movement of the gold price miigated some of the effects of higher cost base, wath our gross profit for the year
being £1 4 milhon After administrative expenses, foreign exchange gains and depreciation and amortisation expenses the
underlying loss was £6 6 million

As mentioned before, production was in part mited by the heavy rainfall in February and Apnl 2012, which hmited
production in the lower Philip shaft area, a high-grade area of the gperations An additional shortfall in production can be
attnbuted to the stenlisatton of a planned mining area in the Mantanagata East ore body Operational development was
carried out to access this area, however foillowing grade control driling and geclogical mapping, it was established that
loca! geological and structural controls were not suitable for mineraksation and a decision was made to suspend further
development and mining in this area of the Mantanagata East ore body

Duning the year our Mineral Resource base remained at 4 2 milhon ounces, however our Mineral Reserves decreased by
50,000 ounces, mainly due to depletion, to 700,000 ocunces

Development of the Vatukoula Gold Mine

This year has been one of continued development at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, with increases m total underground tonnes
mined and substantially more in capital metres developed We achieved 24,653 metres of total development in the current
year, which was shghtly lower than the yearly target of 26,000 metres as a resuil of the heavy rans of February and Apnl
2012

Total development at Vatukoula includes both in-stope development and infrastructure development It 1s infrastructure
development, which 1s compnsed of stnke dnve and capital development that will allow access to new mining areas and
ultimately ensure that the mine reaches its long-term production targets In this regard, we significantly increased our
capital development to 4,975 metres and our strike dnve development decreased slightly to 4,034 metres in the penod
under review

Work on the 18 level Philip Shaft decline remains on target and I1s expected to hole into the bottom of the Philip Shaft in
the first quarter of 2013 This dechne will aliow the mine to clean out the histoncal spillage and re-equip the Phifip Shaft
between 18L and 20L, as well as provide access to the Pnnce Willam and 150G Split orebodies below 18L Cross-cut
development to these orebodies from this decline has already commenced and 1s ahead of current schedules Decline
development for the high-grade Cayzer / Prince orebody (which has Proven and Probable Gold Reserves totalling 100,000
and 130,000 tonnes at grades of 17 80 g/t and 16 85 g/t respectively) commenced in August and 15 currently running
ahead of schedute to allow access for mining from March 2013

Any underground mine requires the construction of major infrastructure far in advance of the commencement of production
and at the end of the last financial year we stated that it 1s our intention to continue our capital investment programme at
the Vatukoula Gold Mine This capital investment I1s expected ultimately to enable the mine to produce at our targeted rate
of preduction on a sustainable and cost-effective basis
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Sustainable Power

Duning the penod the FSC completed a bankable feasibility study on the proposed power project at the Rarawar Sugar
Mill The project has been designed to produce sufficient power for both the Rarawai Mill and VGM  The capital cost 1s
estimated to be in the region of US$130 million to US$160 milien depending on an owner build or construction contractor
option

We believe that a long-term power supply from a source that 1s not beholden to the international hydrocarbon pnce would
provide a significant benefit to the long-term operations at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, through lowered operating costs

The FSC has stated that the Rarawai Biomasse power project will provide power to VGM at a cost of F$ 0 23 per kWh
{US$ 012 per kWh) For the current year our total cost of power at Vatukoula was approximately F$0 61 per kWh (US$
0 34 per kWh)

On 6 March 2012, the FSC formally announced that it will be parinering VGM on the Rarawai Biomasse power project
Vatukoula and the FSC have agreed the terms of a memorandum of understanding and we are awaiting formal signature
by the board of the FSC

Resource Development and Exploration

Dunng the first quarter of the year our dnling programme focused on the continued exploration programme started in
January 2011 The most significant discovery of this programme was the tersection of several mineralised structures
which we collectively named the Mielsen Deposit Driing on the Nielsen Deposit intersected grades as high as 33 60
grams of gold per tonne over 2 86 metres and represents the first major new discovery at Vatukoula Gold Mines for a
considerable penod

After the first quarter all of our dnlling capacity was focused on the resource development programme This dnlling
targeted both inferred and unclassified mineral resources and will be used in the calculation of the 2013 Minera!l Reserve
and Resource estimate The majonty of this drlling was carned out on the Matanagata East ore body and was below
management expectations, therefore we do anticipate that as a result of this dnlling there may be a reduction i mineral
resources In the Matanagata East ore body Drnlling was also carned out on the Prince Wilham ore body, these results
were again broadly in ine with expectations, with some encouraging stgns of resource upside potential

Post Balance Sheet Events

Subseguent to year-end VGM raised £6 million via the 1ssue of 20 million new ordinary shares These shares were placed
with our strategic sharehclder, Zhongrun, which after the 1ssue of these shares has approximately 25% of the enlarged
share capital of VGM The Company has also agreed that Zhongrun will be entitled to propose four nominees for election
as Directors, subject to the approval by the Nominating Committee and election by shareholders

We welcome the continued support of Zhongrun and look forward to further developing our valuable strategic relationship
to assist in the development of the Vatukoula Gold Mine

Outlook

As 1s evident from my report we have had imited success in achieving our targets that we set out at the beginning of the
year In particular both our production and development targets were not achieved, as a result of unseasonal weather
conditions and local geological vanations However in other aspects we have been successful, including the further
definition of Mineral Resources, long term savings achieved with our explosives supphers and most importantly the capital
development achieved dunng the year which has remained either ahead of, or on schedule

It 15 the development that we have achieved in the year that will assist n opeming high-grade areas that will sustain
production in the longer term Over the coming first half year (February 2013) this increase in capital development will
continue {o impact our gold production, subsequent to this production from the Cayzer / Prince ore body will come on
stream and production should increase to targeted production levels

In concluston, | would like to thank all of the operating siaff at the Vatukoula Gold Mine for thew commitment, enthusiasm
and enormous effort in what has been a challenging year in the development of the business | would also like to thank
the Board for their support, advice and commitment throughout the year
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The key business objectives and their relation to our strategic pnonties for 2013 are

Expand
* Achieve normal and capital development metres of 16,500 metres
Sustain
« Continue the reserve and resource driling programme with the objective of increasing our Mineral Reserve base
Optimise
¢ Complete signing of memorandum of understanding with FSC
» Negotiate a power off take agreement
Grow

¢ Carry out further dnlling on key targets identified during the current year

TOWRAY

Dawvid Karl Paxtcn
Chief Executive Officer
9 January 2013
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Market Review

Information contained in the following gold sector market outlook 1s taken from the latest statistics published by the World
Gold Council (www gold org), the industry body that reporis and analyses trends associated with the supply and demand

of gold Such information 1s accurate at the time of the production of this report

Five-year Gold Pnice 2007-2012 (US$/02)

At the beginning of 2012, the gold pnce had increased on a
year-by-year basis for the tenth consecutive year Starling
the year at US$1,530 per ounce, following a more than 12
percent price increase seen In the full year 2011, the pnce
of gold has continued to perform strongly through 2012,
despite a short-term pnce drop rmud-year, and rose above
the US$1,700 per ounce marker at the end of August 2012
The price remains at high levels and currently stands at
US$1,645 per ounce {as of 7 January 2013)

Gold prices in the reporting year opened at US$1,828 per
ounce {1 September 2011) and closed at US$1,655 per
ounce {31 August 2012) The average gold price (based on
mean monthly London Fix pricing) was US$1,672 per
ounce
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Demand

Demand for gold grew to 4,067 tonnes in 2011 {2010 3,812 tonnes), worth an estimated US$206 bilion The pnmary
driver of growth was the investment sector, with demand from the jewellery and technology sectors remaining resilient in
the face of higher growth pnices, and central banks making significant volume purchases Demand for gold bars and coins
accelerated, as investors took advantage of gold's status as a long-term insurance and store of value, rather than as a
means of speculation This trend reflects on-going concerns about the financial health of the eurc area, continued low real
interest rates in several developed economies, positive price expectations and the poor performance of many alternative
Investments

Demand in the key China and India markets remained strong, with both countnes maintaining their strong cuttural links
with the precious metal However, concems about a Chinese economic slowdown and the increasing matunty of the
market, and substantial currency fluctuations in India resulting in domestic gold price swings, tempered growth in demand
Centra!l banks, however, acquired 4340 tonnes of gold in 2011, the highest figure reported since 1964 Emerging market
central banks sought to diversify their fereign exchange holdings, signatones to the Central Bank Go:d Agreement (CBGA)
generally did not sell gold holdings

More recently reported research from the World Gold Council {Q3 2012) confirms that, following a mid-year drop, demand
in Q3 totalled 1,085 tonnes (valued at US$57 6 billion), a 10 percent increase over the previous quarter, but, in value
terms, 14 percent lower than the equivalent penod 1n 2011, a penod of exceptional demand Whilst investor purchases of
bar and coin dropped markedly, and the jewellery and technology sectors reported moderate declines in demand,
purchases made by gold backed exchange traded funds (ETFs) expenenced strong inflows (49 per cent)

India was the strongest performing market (reporting year-on-year growth rates of 7 per cent in jewellery and 12 per cent
in investment demand for Q3 2012) Gold demand in China, however, lost momentum, althcugh there are signs of longer-
term strength in the China market

Supply

Volumes of gold coming into the market totalled 3,994 tonnes in 2011 This represented a 4 per cent decline compared to
2010's 4,108 tonnes Pnmary mined production increased shghtly, to 2,810 tonnes, but this was more than offset by a
contraction in recycling activity The 4 per cent nse in pnmary production was the result of moderate increases in operation
at a number of mines, in China, the US, Russia and such Afncan producer countnes as Entrea, Sudan and Burkina Faso
Meanwhile, Indonesia saw a substantial dechine in production (-36 percent), as did Australia and South Afnca, the latter
hampered by labour, energy and infrastructure 1ssues
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The drop off in supply has continued into 2012, with Q3 figures showing a 2 percent contraction compared to year-earlier
levels Lower levels of recychng in industnalised markets continued to restnct supply, the result of an increased
acceptance of higher price levels, despite depletion of near-market stocks The year-on-year 1 percent drop in pnmary
mine production — the largest quarterly fall since Q3 2008 — i1s the result of disappointing results for a number of gold
production operations, lower than expected growth at a number of new or recovering mines and the Q3 stnkes in South
Afnca

China, Mexico, Russiz and Canada reported national gold production increases, but substantial declines occurred
elsewhere Indonesian production continued to fall, pnmanly the result of changing mine plans at the Grasberg Mine
South African production feli by 9 tonnes, mostly due to strtke action, the results of which are expected to spili over into Q4
and potentally beyond

Outlook & Pricing

The overarching dniver of the gold price, for 2013 and beyond, 1s the development of the global financial cnsis and the
levels of debt bultt up by several Westemn governments Continued uncertainty about the state of the global economy,
coupled with the trend towards deleveraging (¢ @ reduction of debt), fiscal shimulus measures and geopolitical nsks relating
to such countnes as Iran, 1s expected to bolster the status of gold as an attractive insurance asset or store of value for
investors

For this reason, near-term gold pricing outlooks are generally bulish Deutsche Bank AG recently raised its outlook for
gold in 2013 (to US3$2,113 per ounce) and 2014 (US%$2,000 per ounce), citing recent moves by central banks to expand
their balance sheet as a particularly sigmificant trend Similar sentiments were voiced in November 2012 by Jame
Sokalsky, Barnck Gold's CEQ, who envisaged prices of US$2,000 per ounce and higher for 2013, driven by strong
demand fundamentals Other analysts are more circumspect HSBC recently raised its average price forecasts for 2013 to
US$1,850 per ounce, and to US$1,775 per ounce for 2014 The London Bullion Market Association expects to see prices
nse to US$1,849 per ounce by September 2013

Supported by strong demand fundamentals and static or falling supply, Vatukoula Gold Mines believes that the price of
gold will remain at historically high levels for the foreseeable future, with pnces for 2013 and 2014 remaining comfortably
above the US5$1,400 per ounce marker Gold performs well in scenanos of economic uncertanty and 1n acute fiscal
environments, both as a result of deflation {driven, for example, by globa! debt reduction) and of inflahon (which could
occur should public debt levels increase further)

Allocations of gold will therefore remain imperative for many large-scale and smaller investors, funds and central banks,
looking for a ‘safe haven' investment asset
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Key Performance Indicators {KPls)

We assess the performance of our business against several KPIs that are aligned to our strategic and operational goals
These KPIs are monitored on a continuous basis and allow us to pnontise operational objectives and measure progress

against our strategy

Financial KPls

Data Turnover EBITDA’ Cast‘1 cost per ounce Cash cost per anne Net cash generated
£000°000 £'000 000 sold mined & milled In operating
¢ ) { ) (USS/02)’ {USsitonne)' actvibes’
{pence/share)
o = ™
sE8 || 885 || 888 || 88s
NN e A NN NN
£54 9 (E1 6) US$1,627 Us$179 6 91 pence
Definition Turnover volume of EBITDA (eamings Cash cost per Cash cost per Net cash generated
(Full  definition gold and silver sold before interest, ounce sold 1s tonne mined & n operating
for non-IFRs  during the penod taxes, depreciation,  calculated by dvidng  milled 15 calculated activities 1s
measures are Multiplied bythegold  and amortisation) s  the aggregate cash by dividing the calculated by dividing
provided on @and sitver price the net profit or loss o0sts mcurred 0 our aggregate cash the operating cash

page 20}

achieved aver the
penod

excluding

«finance income
«finance expense
etax expense
sdepreciation and
amortsaticn

mining operations by
the punces of gold
sold

costs incurred in our
mining operations by
the tonnes mined
and milled

flow generated or
utilsed in operations
by the weighted
average of the
number of Ordinary
Shares 1n 1s5ue

Performance in
2012

Turnover totalled
£54 9 mithon 1n 2012,
an increase of 15%
on 2011, as a result
of increased gold
pnces (Further
information s set out
In the Finanoal
Review on pages 16
to 20)

EBITDA was (£1 8)
million a decrease of
£3 8 million on the
year ending 2011
This reduction was
driven by hugher unit
costs (Further
information Is set out
in the Financial
Rewview on pages 16
to 20)

Cash cost per
ounce sold
increased to
US$1,627 as result
of increased unit
costs (Fusther
information 1s set out
in the Financial
Rewview on pages 16
to 20}

Cash cost per
tonne mined &
milled increased
from US$145/0nne
In 2011 {o
US$179/0onne in
2012 The majonty of
this vanance was
attnbutable to
Increases I mining
costs (Further
informatron 15 set out
in the Financial
Rewiew on pages 16
to 20)

Operating cash flow
per share was 6 91
pence In 2012
compared to (2 73)
pence in 2011 This
change was pnmanly
attnbutable to
ncreases in creditors
and other changes in
working capital
{Further information
15 set out In the
Financial Review on
pages 16 to 20)

impoertance

Turnover 1s a useful
indicator to measure
our progress towards
our targeted
producton and the
effect of changing
gold prces on our
profitability and
operating cash flow

EBITDA 15 a useful
indicator of the
Group s ability to
generate operating
cash flow, which wall
altow it {o fund its
sustaining and
expansian capital
needs

Cash cost per
ounce sold allows
us to monitor the key
dnvers that impact on
our profitability

Cash cost per
tonne mined &
milled allows
management to track
and compare costs
on a monthly basis
regardiess of
vanances tn tonnes
mined and milled

Operating cash flow
per share Is a
measure of the
Group s ability to
generate cash flow
from its business

1 EBITDA, Cash cost per ounce sold, Cash cost per tonne mined and milled and Operating cash flow per share are non-IFRS financal
performance measures with no standard meantng under IFRS Refer to “Non-IFRS measures” on page 20 for detarled defimbions on
each measure
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Operational KPls

Data Gold Shipped Total development Total resources per Lost ime injury
(Oz) metres share (Qz/1,000 frequency rate
(m) shares) {frequency rate)
(=T o -~ o - o (=T ]
=5 - o = o o == IR ==
o o o o o o o QO © o o O
N NN N NN NN~ ~N NN
52,616 24,653 42 14 83
Definition Gold Shipped 15 the Total development Total resources per Lost time Injury
(Fun! definiion Group's total ounces of metres represent the share are calculated frequency rate
for Non-IFRS gold sold dunng ths aggregate of both as the total of the {LTIFR)is a
measures are penod capital and normal Measured, Indicated measure of lost time
provided on metres mined overthe  and Inferred claims per mithon
page 20) penod Resources expressed  hours worked
as contained ounces
dvided by the number
of shares in 1ssue,
using a ratio of 1
ounce per 1,000
shares
Performance Gold Shipped totalled Total development Total resources per Lost time Injury
in 2012 52,616 ounces, metres were 24,652 share equalled 42 0z frequency rate
compared fo 53 461 metres for the year a 11,000 shares increased from
ounces in the previous small increase of 189 (Further informationi1s 13 13.1n 2011 to
year Thus reduction metres over the year set out in the Reserve 14 83.1n 2012 This
was a result of lower ended August 2011 and Resource represents a 13%
ore tonnes being This 1s a result of the Statement on pages INcrease m our
delivered to the milland  Group s continued 25 to 27) LTIFR (Further
lower recovery rates development informahon is set
(Further information 1s programme out In Corporate
set out in the Chief Responsibility
Executive Officer's review on page 21)
Review and Operationat
Review on pages 5to 7
and pages 12 to14)
Importance Gold Shipped Total development Total resources per Lost time injury

measures our progress
to achieving our long
term produchon targets

metres allows us to
measure our progress
towards having
sufficient working
areas to achieve our
production target

share allows us to
measure our ability to
discover new ore
bodies and to replace
resource depleton as
a result of mining
activities

frequency rate aids
us to assess the
effectiveness of our
health and safety
programme and
controls at our
operations
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Operational Review

Operationally we progressed with our development programme, with dramatic increases in capital development metres
We did however face operational challenges that prevented us from reaching our targeted production Total gold shipped
was 52,616 ounces, a 2% decrease on last year’s figure

Operating resuits Year ended 31 Year ended 31 % Variance

August 2012 August 2011

477,089 427,688 12%

Tol nderground Tonnes Mined {Ore, Waste)

OPBaNAg DEVIIoPEnt NSt o PR S s B 1 5, S BRI i R O B A MR e s SR GR) |

“Strike Dnive Development Metres T 4,034 5312 (24%)
Capia| DEvelonTer Mt ee MR e s o B R s . A OIBRe g 1 ¥ o BRAOLS, o T et
Total Development metres 24,653 24,453 1%
Sulphide Plant SRRt a5 o« =, - e
Sulphide Ore delivered (tonnes) 304,042 336,085 {10%)
Sulphide hedd Grade'(gramis / tonne) = . -7~ o =% 512 " 500 j =5 2%
Oxide Plant
Ore delivered (tonnes) i v3438L 40, = o vl . s 178,357 - . 160,823 10% |
Oxide head grade {grams / tonne) 207 139 48%
Total (Sulphide’s Oxide) <% . . - .~ . . o L. o - : Pl
Ore processed (tonnes) 479,524 498,123 (4%)
Average ore head grade (grams / tonne) o 424 | 378 -t 2%
Total Recovery (%) 78 57% 81 26% (3%)
Gold produced (ounces) , % " ) 53,152 52,157 2%
Gold shipped (ounces} 52,616 53,461 {2%)
Cash Costs ) L . - -
Total cash cost / shipped ounce{US$) 1,627 1,349 21%
Total cash cost / tonne {(US$) , 179 145 23%

Underground Production

Total tonnes of ore, waste and capital mmed for 2012 increased by 12% to 477,089 tonnes compared to 2011 The higher
tonnages were dnven by increases n capital development, which increased from 2,307 metres to 4,975 metres
representing a 116% increase over the twelve months ending 31st August 2012

The ore delivered from underground for 2012 was 304,042 tonnes, a 10% decrease compared to the same penod last
year This reduction in ore delivered was due in part to lower stnke dnve development duning the year, which s typically
delivered as ore

The average underground grade for the twelve months was 5 12 grams per tonne, which was higher than the same penod
last year (5 00 grams per tonne) We had forecast higher grades in the latter half of the year however both the heavy
rainfall and local geological vanations within the Matanagata ore body prevented us from achieving these targets

Underground operations remain focused cn infrastructure development which should enable the mine to produce at our
long-term projected rate The development program remains on target with all major development ends either ahead of, or
on schedule

Surface Production

Production from surface oxides and a sulphide waste pile situated near Philip Shaft for the twelve months delivered
176,357 tonnes at a grade of 2 07 grams per tonne Dunng the year surface operations have switched from a low-grade
oxide waste dump to a sulphide waste dump in the Philip Shaft vicinity The sulphide waste dump matenal 1s generally of a
higher grade compared to the oxide matenal, but does impact the overall recovery
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Vatukcula Treatment Plant (“VTP")

Dunng the twelve months, the VTP processed 479,524 tonnes of ore which was a 4% reduction compared to the same
penod last year (498,123 tonnes)

The average grade increased from 3 78 grams of gold per tonne in the twelve months ending August 2011, to 4 24 grams
of gold per tonne in the twelve months ending August 2012 This was dnven by higher grades delivered from both
underground and surface mining operations

Recovernies for the twelve-month were 78 3% This was lower than the comparable period last year as a result of the
sulphide nature of the matenal delivered from the waste dump located near the Philip Shaft

During the year we have been investigating ways to optimise our processing plant and increase recovenes In parlicular
we have undertaken bactena leach test work Duning tests at our bactena leach pilot plant, we had on average recovery
rates of 94% from concentrate This would ultimately tead to an overall recovery of around 85% which 1s comparable to the
current techniques, however considerably costs would be saved in Cyanide consumption

Cash Costs

As a result of Increases in fuel pnces and heavy vehicle consumables our cash cost per cunce of gold shipped increased
to US%$1,627 Overall cash cost per tonne mined and milled also increased to US$179 (2011 US$145) Further detaill on
the main dnivers that led to these increases are contained within the Financial Review on pages 16 to 20

Employees

At the year-end we employed 1,458 individuals as either full-tme employees or as casual labour Of our workforce 797 are
tnvolved in direct mining operations, and a further 347 are involved In engineenng support services and 78 are involved in
the processing of ore The remainder are involved in administration, finance, information technology, supply, secunty, and
operational health and safety
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Geological Review
The main objectives of our exploration and resource defimtion programme are to

1 ldentify and detail new areas for mining and delineate expansion potential within the VGM Special Mining Lease areas
2 Undertake regional exploration on VGM's Special Prospecting Licenses

This programme 1s an essential component in the long-term operational sustainability strategy at the Vatukoula Gold Mine
Our overall objective 1s to increase hfe-of-mine operations and to improve our understanding of the full extent of gold
mineralisation in the Tavua Caldera, using modern-day geological and exploration tools

The results from these programmes will guide the company in regards to the potental expansion of the current operations
The combination of exensive historical miving data, minimal exploration in recent years and modern exploration
techmigues provides an excephonal opportunity to make another discovery of economic mineralisation in the Tavua
Caldera

Resource Definition

We are currently undertaking an extensive diamond drlling campaign designed to better define our significant resource
base, with the ultimate goal of increasing reserves at the Vatukoula Gold mine, and placing us in a much stronger position
to plan and subsequently execute, our mining plans

Over the course of the financial year three large capacity diamond drill ngs were deployed on the surface to undertake
resource defimition achvities, two of which are dedicated surface dnling machines, with the third having both surface and
underground driling capabilities, giving the VGM dnling department additional flexibility in dnll site selection Combined
surface resource definition dnliing over the course of the financial year represented 30 completed holes, totalling 25,415
metres, the bulk of which targeting the Matanagata North East, Matanagata East and Prince William ore bodies

Matanagata North East — 13 holes were completed, targeting existing inferred and unclassified mineral resource,
representing 11,041 metres of diamond dnlling from surface Results from this program will be evaluated over the coming
months and will be used to burld the 2013 resource update At this point In time, results are considered to be broadly in
hine with expectattons, and have contributed signmificantly to the understanding of the behaviour of the Matanagata North
East ore body At this stage, only limted surface follow up drilling on Matanagata North East 1s planned for the coming
financial year, with significant surface area of the current resource base on Matanagata North East having already been
covered within the past 12 menths

Matanagata East - 11 holes completed, targeting existing inferred and unclassified mineral resource, representing 8,175m
of diamond dnlling from surface As with the dnlling conducted on the Matanagata North East ore body, results from this
dnihing will be used to construct the 2013 mineral resource Additional dnlling has been planned for the coming year, and a
detalled evaluation of results stll remains However, inihial results suggest additional geological complexity present within
the Matanagata East ore body, and have broadly returned results below expectation Targeted follow up dnling and
detalled desktop evaluation have been planned for the coming financial year, although the current expectation 1s a
reduction in avalable resource from Matanagata East when the 2013 resource update 1s completed

Pnnce William — 6 holes completed, targeting existing inferred and unclassified mineral resource, representing 5,200
metres of surface diamond dnlling Dnlling on Prince William from surface has been primanly focussed to the south of
Philip Shaft, in zones proximal to current underground development As with the Matanagata dnlling, results will be used to
construct the 2013 resource update, with mitial results retumed at this early stage of the program appeanng encouraging,
and broadly in ine with expectabon Additional dnlling has been planned for the coming year and will form the centre point
of the resource defimtion strategy pushing forward, given the large resource base to define and potential for resource
upside opporturity

In addition to the surface resource definition activities, a number of driling programs staged from underground locations
commenced towards the latter stages of this year, and remain in progress to date Of note, a significant program 1s
currently underway to the north of Phiip Shaft from a dedicated dnll platform on 17 level Philip, targeting the Prnce
Willam and 1500 (the hanging wall of Pnnce Wilhlam) ore bodies Although significant dnilling remains within this zone,
results returned to date appear extremely encouraging, and indicate resource upside potential for the 2013 resource
update This area will be a key focus point of the resource definition strategy going forward
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Exploration

In the first quarter of the year we announced the intersection of three new high-grade minerahsed structures at Vatukoula,
subsequently named the Nielsen Deposit These mineralised structures were intersected by three dnll holes Significant
composite mineralised intersections include

» 124 7 grams of gold per tonne over 0 46 metres,
+ 3360 grams of gold per tonne over 2 86 metres,
s 25 46 grams of gold per tonne over 1 07 mefres, and

* 3900 grams of gold per tonne over 0 48 metres

Subsequent to the inihal discovery we continued to define the mmeralised structures at higher levels and along strke We
dnlled and completed a further three holes, which all intersected the mineralsed structures, and confirmed our
interpretation of an open system along sinke

This discovery is contained on the current mining leases as well as on the special prospecting icenses and 1s located 300
metres north of current mine workings The dnlling has wdentfied up to four mineralised structures Three of these
structures are sub-verhical, which have been intersected between 300 metres and 700 metres below surface (11 and 23
level), and the fourth I1s a honzontal structure approximately 700 metres below surface

The vertical structures are roughly onentated in a northeast-southwest direction consistent with some of the local and
regional controls The horizontal structure 1s thought to be a faulted block of a flatmake structure, which 1s typically mined
at Vatukoula

A total of 4,744 metres over eight exploration holes were dnlled dunng the year The majonty of this dnling was
undertaken n the first quarter, with all the ngs being assigned to resource definition dnlling in for the remainder of the
year

Exploration dnling will continue once we have spare capacity in our current dnlling fleet This exploration programme will
focus on the above mentioned Nielsen deposit and the Pnnce William Deeps, which has two histonc holes with multiple
high-grade mmeralised intersections

During last year's exploration programme, dnlling was completed on two targets with near-surface potentia!

As a result of subsequent interpretative work we have completed a mineral resource assessment on one of the targets
and have defined a JORC compliant Inferred Mineral Resource of 51 milhion tonnes at 09 grams of gold per tonne,
containing 142,000 ounces

The resource lies approximately 4 km north of the VTP processing plant The mineralisation strikes northeast over a length
of approximately 1 km, dips to the south between 20 and 50 degrees, and extends to a depth of approximately 180

metres The geology 1s compnised of andesite, tuff and recent cover units overlying the caldera contact breccia Basalt
units form the footwall to the caldera contact breccia Stockwork mineralisation occurs within the caldera contact breccias,
andesite and tuff units
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Financial Review

The purpose of this review 1s to prowvide a detalled analysis of the Group’s consolidated 2012 results and the main factors
affecting the financial performance The Financial Review should be read i conjunction with the financial statements and
associated notes on pages 36 and 44

Year ended 31 August

Year ended 31 August

Average ore head grade {grams/tonne)

Recoyery.(%) ¥ R Ta s en g e 3-r 3 2778 STREREE\ Bis R 8126%
Gold shipped (ounces) 52,616 53,461
REVEDU G 000N S o oo St AR £ e 30 40 BPWE P o Fo L T UBAIGIETT S Lil, 47,964
EBITDA (£'000) (1,547) 2,150
Cdsh génerated from / (used in)'operating activities (£'000) foe et © 6287 T (2.312)
Loss (£'000) {7,070) (2,315)
Total cash cost'shipped ounce (US$) *'= -~ * * * : 1,627 1,349
Average realised gold price (E/ounce) 1,044 897
Average realised gold price (US$/ounce) . # s P & - 1,643 1,439

During the year the Group benefited from the increased gold price which resulted in higher turnover Overall, however the
Group's financial results were adversely affected by the industry wide increase in costs, the continued accelerated
development programme and some challenging operational issues encountered dunng the year Increased mining costs
per tonne and higher volumes of matenal treated resulted in a loss of £7 1 millon and a net operating loss of £0 07 million
The increased costs also affected the cash cost per ounce sold, which increased to US$1,627

Revenue

Revenue for the year of £54 9 million was 15% higher than the prior year penod of £47 9 million The Group's year-on-
year sales volume decreased by 845 ounces, which adversely affected revenue However the Group benefited from the
large increases In gold pnces dunng the year The average realised gold price was US$1,643 in 2012, compared to
US$1,439 per ounce 1n 2011

Commodity Prices

Gold pnces have a significant impact on the Group’s revenue, net profits and its ability to generate cash flows |n 2012 the
price of Gold reached US$1,894 and traded between a range of US$1,539 and US$1,894 per ounce Market gold prices
averaged US$1,672 compared to our average realised gold price of US$1,643 per ounce

Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses

Year ended 31 August Year ended 31 August

{£'000) 2012 2011

COStOf Sales & Operatng EXPenses tr-rn, + 4 B4 -7 2 77T A may T TAgE g - SLaree i R A T
Mining (35,686) (29,731)
ProcBESing - -- o -, i = 0, e ” . (10,281) . ... o {9,144),
QOverheads (5,917) {4,403)
GO DM -, s - T T L (1.660); - 0.(1,440)
Administrative expenses {2,762) (2,3W
| FOTeIgnexchange SARSEy 1, » -« v " . - TR T S M 1,592
Depreciation and amortisation (6,551) (6,074)
Total« 3 ¥ Hpd o+ - o -0 s (61,523) {51,501)

Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses increased to £61 5 milhion in 2012 from £51 5 milion in 2011 A 20% increase in
mining costs elevated the cost of sales and operating expenses by £6 millon This was parily offset by a decrease in the
amount of ore and waste mined which reduced the effect of the elevated mining costs to £5 6 million on a like for ke
basis The remammg £4 1 million 15 attnbutable to
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= a netincrease in unit milling costs which represented £1 1 million in additional costs,

* a £2 million increase in overhead and admmistrative costs,

¢ an increase n the value of gold shipped which elevated the go!d duty paid to £0 2 mullion,
s higher amortisation and depreciation charges of £0 5 milhon, and

» adecrease in unrealised foreign exchange gains on intercompany loans of £0 3 million

A breakdown of the key drivers behind the increase in ¢cost of sales and operating expenses 1s shown in the graph below

£65,000
£458 £273 £ars.
£60.000 £1:514 £220
’ £1,.478
5575 .

£55,000
o
=4 £3B0 "
w £341

£50,000 4

£45,000

£40,000 4 T v T T T — T T T v

Cost of Sales Variance due Variance due Change in unit Change munit  Change in Change in Change in Foreign Depreciation  Cost of Sales
and Opex tochanged to change ore muning costs  processing Overhead Gold Duty PaidAdministrative  exchange and and Opex
2011 ore and waste processed costs Costs Expenses gans amortisation 2012
mined

As outlined above the vanance in unit mining costs represented the key dnver to the increase in costs compared to the
previous year The mining costs totalled £35 7 million for the year This represents an increase of £6 million from the prior
year perod (£29 7 million) The increase in costs can be mainly attnbuted to

¢ an increase in underground direct unit costs of £1 9 million which can be mamly attrbuted to an increased market
prices and increased usage of heavy vehicle tyres, oil and lubnication, contractor haulage charges and other mining
consumables This was partly offset by a 24% decrease in explosive costs (10% decrease on a unit cost basis)

« a£0 7 milion increase m labour costs This 1s a result of Increased labour and an implementation of a bonus system

¢ a£0 4 milion increase in engineenng and higher maintenance costs on heavy vehicles,

« af£2 4 milion increase m power and pumping costs mainly due to higher fuel costs experienced during the year

« expensing the gold in circurt drawn down in the peniod, which increased compared to the previous year and increased
cosis by £1 8 miilion

A detalled breakdown of the mining expenses and the vanances year-on-year for the Group are shown in the table and
graph below

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

(£'000}) August 2012 August 2011

Vanable Dlrect M:mng Costs 11 592 9,623

1O MY LaboURCos S B iy (o a e B R A0 B R et e S i 2 B 2,651

Engineenng Costs 7,868 8,608
¥OtherRMiniiG COSSRIRIEERN. & & s i SRl e e b TSR AR, L A B0 015

Gold stock movement 1,422 {366)

TSI TINING CAPOHGeS b e s, i e, T Pt "y et . o » 05,686 _Sgkn “oimb s, w1220 731

Depreciation and amortisation was £6 6 million for the year This represents an increase of 8% from the prior year (£6 1
milkon) This increase 1s due to the higher capital investment base employed in late 2011 and in 2012 as a result of the
accelerated development programme, capital equipment replacement programme and the rate of depreciation when
compared to older capital development and equipment
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£37,000
£35,000
£33,000
g8
© E£31,000
w
£29,000 T
£27,000 1
£25,000 -
Mining Costs Vaniance due  Vanancein  Variancein  Vanancein  Variancen  Underground Vanancein  Gold stock  Mining Costs
2011 change in ore underground U/G mining u/G other U/G power,  surface mining movement 2012
and waste directunit  labour cost  engineering minng costs  compresssed costs
mined costs costs ar and
PUImMpINg COStS
Cash Costs

Cash costs for the year ending 31 August 2012 were US$1,627 per ounce shipped (2011 US$1,349 per ounce) This
increase In cash costs can mainly be attnbuted to the higher unit costs per tonne of ore mined and lower recovery rates
encountered during the year The dnvers for the increased umt cost per tonne mined are explamed in the Cost of Sales
and Operating Expenses review

The table below provides reconciliabion between cost of sales, operating expenses and cash costs to calculate the cash
cost per ounce shipped

Year ended 31 August Year ended 31

2012 August 2011

MIming(£'000) TR 1 Ty L T i U gl (35,886) - e i < E(2G731)
Processing (£'000) (10,281) (9,144)
Overheads (£1000Y i spmiliain: s s wins! £ o5 TIRRIETT T T {5,917) ; {4,403)
Gold Duty (£'000) {1,660) {1,440)
Mine administrative costs (£'000)° - » {829) * : (244)
Total cash costs of production (54,373} (44,962)
GBE£ / US$ foréign'eXchange rate - ' ' N L. 4 w084 0 7 TV T ITEe2
Gold shipped (ounces) 52,616 53,461
Tonnés mined and milléd .~ . ' 479,524 498,123
Total cash costs/shipped ounce (US$) 1,627 1,349

Administrative Costs

Administrative expenses totalled £2 8 million for the year ended August 2012 which was a 20% increase n costs from the
pnor year of £2 3 million The administrative expenses are those costs associated with maintaining the London office and
the administrative expenses in Fin not directly attnbutable to operating activities Costs include salanes, office rent,
regulatory, audit, legal fees and investor related expenses

Exploration and Evaluation Costs

As highlighted in the geological review, the Group embarked on a significant dnlling campaign during the year This was
the first such campaign for almost ten years and in this year we incurred £4 2 million compared 1o the £2 7 miflion in 2011
All the exploratron and evaluation costs were capitalised as an Intangible Asset in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets
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Taxation and Other Expenses

Dunng the year the Group had a tax credit of £1 1 mullion (2011 £1 6 millon) This tax credit anses as a result of the
release of the deferred tax iability The year on year changes are predominantly due to a change in the UK corporation tax
rates, which decreased the tax hability in the current year

Other expenses amounted to £1 8 million in 2012 up from £0 4 million in the previous year This increase was prnimanly
due to the provision of £1 million against prepayments of mere than one year In addition a charge of £0 6 million (2011
£0 8 millon) was incurred as a result of the 1ssue of share options 1ssued to staff and the option 1Issued to Zhongrun, which
expired at the end of July

EBITDA

EBITDA for the year ended 31 August 2012 was a foss of £1 6 million compared to a gain of £2 2 million in the prior year
This decrease was dnven by increases in urul mining costs, this decrease was partly offset by increase in the average
gold pnice achieved dunng the year

Reconciliation between net profit for the penod and EBITDA 1s presented below

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
£('000) August 2012 August 2011
Tk e e TN VR R S B (707 0) SRR 258T5)
Less income tax credit 1,075 1,618
"Plys Uepreciatiph’and amorisaton’expense : medw o mE Y 0 (6,551) . »(6,07%).
Less finance iIncome 65 a8
[ PIfs finance expense -~ - ’ < A1) = {107)
EBITDA (1,548} 2,150

Basic Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 August 2012 was 7 81 pence compared to basic loss per share of 2 76 pence
for the year ended 31 August 2011 This decrease was driven by the net loss for the year

Cash Flow

Net cash generated 1n operating actvities was £6 3 mullion for year, an increase of £8 6 million on the pnior year (cash
used of £2 3 milhon) Prior to working capital the net operating loss was £0 07 millon compared to a net operating income
of £1 6 million in the previous year This reduction was due to lower EBITDA The net operating income before changes 1n
working capital was increased by the changes in working capital which generated £6 3 millon (2011 used £3 @ mullion)
These changes in working capital were for the majonty dnven by an increase in accounis payable This was in part due to
a change n creditor terms in which we moved from prepayments to 30-day payment terms

Cash flow used in iInvesting activities equated to £16 1 milion for the year which represents a 46% increase from the pnor
year of £11 milion Of the £16 1 milion used n investing activities, £7 2 million (2011 £6 5 millon) was used in the
purchase of plant and equipment and £9 1 milion (2011 £4 6 millon} was used in underground development and
exploration activibes The continued investment in the Vatukoula Gold Mine represents the continued capital expenditure
required to achieve our produchon growth strategy and in the long-term our expansion strategy

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended 31 August 2012 was £5 3 rmullion (2011 £7 3 milion) The large
majonty (£5 4 million} of this relates to a placing carned out in April 2012 At 31 August 2012 the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of £2 4 milhon (2011 £6 9 milhon) In November 2012, and subsequent to the year end, the Company raised a
further £6 6 milhon for the 1ssue of 20 million new ordinary shares

Financial Position

Intangible assets increased from £34 1 million 1in 2011 to £36 8 milion In 2012 The increase 1s pnmanly attributable to the
mncrease In exploration and evaluation costs which totalled £4 2 millon This increase was partly offset by the amortisation
of the intangible mining asset recognised on acgquisition of the Vatukoula Gold Mine in Apnl 2008 The net book value of
plant property equipment and mine properties development was £37 2 million (2011 £305 milion) The main capital
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expenditure drivers being those outhned in the cash flow used in the investing activities section above, these were offset
by amortisation and depreciation charges of £6 & million (2011 £6 1 million)

Total assets increased from £87 3 rmilhion in 2011 to £90 7 million in 2012  The increase was for the large part due to an
increase In intangible and tangible assets These increases were offset by lower inventones, trade and other recevables
and a £4 5 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Total current labilities for the year ended 31 August 2012 were £12 3 million, an increase of £5 § million from the balance
of £6 5 million in 2011 This increase 1s primarly dnven by the mcrease in trade creditors as outhined n the cash flow
section above Non-current habilities decreased to £10 4 millon from £12 3 million in the previcus year This decrease Is
manly due to the £1 0 milhon release of the deferred tax liabiity recognised on the acquisition of the Vatukoula Gold Mine
in Apnil 2008

Kiran Morzana
Finance Director
9 January 2013

Non-iFRS Measures

The Group has identified certain measures in this report that are not measures as defined under IFRS Non-IFRS financial measures
disclosed by the directors and management are provided to shareholders as additional information i order to provide them with an
alternative method of assessing the Group's financial condifion and operating results These measures are not in accordance with, or a
substtute for IFRS, and may be different from or inconsistent with non-IFRS measures used by other compames These measures are
explained below

Average realised gold prnice is a non-IFRS financial measure and i1s calculaled by dividing the total revenue for the year by the ltotal
ounces sold dunng the year and converling the GBE value fo US$ at the average foreign exchange rate over the year

EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure The group calculates EBITDA as (loss)/profit for the penod excluding

Income tax credits or expense

Finance expense

Finance income

Depreciation and amortisation charges, and
Goodwil impairment charges

EBITDA 1s intended to provide addifional information to investors and analysts It does not have a standard definition under IFRS and
other compames may calculate EBITDA differently Refer to page 19 as part of the financial review section for a reconcitiation of profit to
EBITDA EBITDA should not be considered a substitute or in 1solation for measures of performance as prepared in accordance with
IFRS, as it excludes the impact of cash costs of financing activibies and taxes and the changes of working capital balances,

Cash cost per ounce sold / per tonne mined and milled are non-IFRS financial measures Cash costs mclude all costs associated with
mining and processing the unit of measure, inclusive of all costs absorbed into nventory, as well as royalties, production taxes and mine
overheads/admimstrative costs The cash costs exclude foreign exchange gamns, depreciation and amortisation expenses, impatment
charges, inventory obsolesces, rehabiitation charges, doubtful debts and share based payments These cash cos!s are aggregated and
divided by either ounces of gold shipped or the tonnes mined and mifled to reach the relevant non-IFRS financial measure

Operating cash flow per share is @ non-IFRS financial measure and s calculaled by dividing the Net cash (used) / generated in
operating activities by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue
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Corporate Responsibility

We believe that to operate effectively and profitably VGM needs to establish mutually beneficial relationships within the
community that we operate We need to maintamn these relationships to help us ensure a stable operating environment
and allow access to our exploration assets

Community Relations

The Vatukoula Gold Mine has under previous owners had some issues with its community relations Qver the course of
2012 there has been an improvement in the relationships between our Company and our local stakeholders The key
areas of focus for this tmprovement have been

a) regular engagement with the local communities, allowing open and frank discussions and respecting stakeholders
concerns,

b) maximising the communities’ opportunity to benefit from employment and local procurement, and

c) developing a long-term plan to assist local communities to pursue ther own socio-economic prionties

Some of the main matenal contnbutions we make to the local community are, the provision of subsidised power and water,
sponsorship of local sporting clubs and events, renovation or construction of staff housing and the contnbution of F$6
million for the establishment of the Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund {"VSATF")

Management expects that the commencement of the provision of assistance from the Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust
Fund 1s imminent, the Trust implementation documents having been approved by the Cabinet of the Government of Fi
The trustees are expected to administer the F$6million dollars of assistance contnbuted by the Group for the benefit of
those employees still redundant after the former owners of the Vatukoula Gold Mine ceased operations in December
2006 Under principles stipulated by VGM, it 1s intended that the VSATF function as a model for current and future mining
operations throughout Fii in terms of planning for the sustainable livellhoods of mine workers after mine closure or
downsszing

Health and Safety

Safety 1s a top prionty for mine management During the year under review we experienced a Lost Time Injury Frequency
Rate (“LTIFR™) of 14 8 per 1 milion man hours To improve on the mine's safety performance a number of inhatives are
underway A dedicated manager has been appointed to lead the safety, health, environment and traiming teams
Dedicated safety and trarming supenntendents are in the process of being locally recruited We are working with Austraha
based external training providers for the provision of specialised traiming matenals and software to recogrised standards
and a review of all policies, procedures and standards 1s 1n progress on the mine The mine has also introduced a bonus
scheme for local employees, a major component of which is safety performance

Safety in the workplace I1s regarded as a top prionty at all imes We insist that all our employees work according to
stringent safety practices and we are all working toward our target of a zero LTIFR

Environment

Over the year we have developed a comprehensive environmental policy that 1s to be implemented across our operation
A study by an independent engineer reviewed our policies and procedures and camed out 2 gap analysis against relevant
local legislation, the IFC Performance Standards, IFC EHS General Guidelines and the IFC Mining Sector Guidelines
Although the Company was either Comphant or Matenally Complaint with these standards, it has identified areas for
impraovement in the coming year

One of the key consumables at the mine 1s energy which currently 1s provided by fossil fuels, andwe have been examining
opportunities to reduce our reliance on diesel power generation In particular we are looking to establish an off-take
agreement or joint venture with the FSC

21




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review

For the year ended 31 August 2012

Risk Management
Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

The Beard annually reviews the key nsks facing the business together with making assessment of the controls for

managing these nsks where possible The pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group are as follows

Risk Mitigation/Comment Potential mpact  Further information
Strategic nisks

Reserve and resource estimates

The Group’s mineral reserves and The Group continually monitors High The Group's Mineral

resources are estimates based on
several assumptions, including
geological, mining, metallurgical and
other technical factors There can
be no assurance that the anticipated
tonnages or grades will be achieved

Single asset nisk

All of the Group's revenue 15 denved
from production of the Vatukoula
Gold Mine in Fiji In order to ensure
continued production and expansion
to the current cperations the
company need to build in additional
capacity and develop further growth
opportunities

Financial nsks

Commodity pnces

The Group's financial performance
15 dependent on the price of gold
and diesel Adverse movements in
gold price and diesel price
movements could have a matenal
impact on the Group's results and
operations

Costs and caprtal expenditure

The Group operates in an industry
which has expenenced shortages in
consumables and capital equipment
and as such prices can vary
significantly year on year These
vanations may adversely affect
operating cash flow and the Group’s
financial position

and reconciles the produchion
targets and mine plans aganst
mineral reserve and resource
figures Our mineral reserve and
resources are updated annually
and are prepared to the
Australasian Code for Reporting
of Exploration Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves

The Group's management has High
implemented an accelerated
development programme to
develop spare capacity in the
underground mining
infrastructure and in addition 13
assessing the wider prospecting
heenses it helds The Group will
also asses other opportunities
outside of Fiji if they are
presented to the Group

The executive board constantly High
monitors the commodity prices
and its potential effects on
operating cash flow and
profitability The Group’s strategy
however 1s to provide maximum
exposure to Gold hence no
hedging strategies have been
employed Long term diesel
hedging will come from the
biomass power station fixing our
largest cost

The Group's management i1s Medium

constantly reviewing vanation in
both activity costs and the
consumables driving them We
will seek to further mitigate these
costs by entering into long-term
supply contract where possible

In addition management carry out
cash flow analysis and
sensitivities to mitigate hquidity
risk
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Reserve and Resource
statement are set out on
pages 2510 27

A review of our operational
and exploration activities
and potential organic growth
opportunities are set out in
the Operational and
Geological Review on
pages 12 to 13 and pages
14to 15

Further information 1s set
out in the Market Review on
pages 8 to 9 and the
Financial Review on pages
16 to 20

Further information 1s set
out in the Financial Review
on pages 16 to 20




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review
For the year ended 31 August 2012

Risk

Mitigation/Commaent

Potential mpact

Further information

Operational nsks

Business mterruption

Assels used in operations may The Group has implemented a High Further information 1s
break down and current insurance maintenance system which available in the Operations
policies may not cover aganst all should go some way to mitigate Review on pages 12t0 13
forms of nsks due to certain these nsks In addition we are
exclusions carrying out a full nsk
assessment on this 1ssue, and
will investigate If insunng agamst
some of these nsks will be
economic
Reserve and resource depletion
The Group's future profitability and The Group has identified key High Further information 15
operating margins depend upon its areas of resource and reserve available in the Geoclogical
ability to replenish reserves with definition and further exploration Review on pages 14to 15
geological charactenstics to enable areas within its current icenses It
mining at competitive costs has begun both programmes
Personnel
The key nsks in this area are as
follows
Loss of key senior management and  The Group seeks to provide Medium Not Applicable
personnel, in particular highly skilled  competitive compensation
engineers and geologists arrangements Inclusive of
options packages
The lack of availability of suitably The Group recruits Mediurn Not Applicable
skilled individuals in the vicinty of internationally, and as above
the Group's operations provide competitive
compensation packages
Failure to maintain good labour A labour relations officer has High Not Applicable
relations with workers and /or been appointed and ensures
unions may result in work employees needs and
slowdown, stoppage or strike requirements are heard and if
apgropnate, met The Group also
has an open dralogue with key
stakeholders inclusive of worker
unions
Health and Safety
The Group employees who work in The Group takes the Health and High Further information 1s
the mines may be exposed to health  Safety of employees and available in the Corporate
and safety nsks Failure to manage contractors very serously and Responsibility section on
these rnsks may results in a work monitor, review and improve our page 21
slowdown, stoppage or stnike and/or  health and safety initiatives on a
may damage the reputation of the regular basis
Group and hence 1ts ability to
operate
Environmental
The Group may be hable for losses The Group has an environmental  High Further information is

ansing from enwironmental hazards

associated with the Group's
activittes and production methods,
or may be required to undertake
extensive remedial clean — up
action or pay for governmental
remedial clean up actions

department with an allocated
budget for environmental
purposes The current polices
have been recommended by an
externa! third party and thewr
implementation will be audited
Water and arr quality 1s monitored
on a regular basis
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Risk

Mitigation/Comment

Potential mpact  Further information

External nsks

Political, legal and requlatory
developments

Future changes to the environment
which may include increases in
taxes and / or royalties may result in
additional expense, restnctions on
operations and delay the
development of future projects

Community relations

Under previous ownership the
Group’s operation in Fij has
historically recewved criticisms from
external independent orgamsations

We liaise with the government
and relevant departments in Fij
on many aspects of our day to
day operations and are proactive
In our approach In addibion we
monitor the political landscape to
see If there are likely changes in
policy that are kkely to impact the
Group's operations

The Group has a community
relations department which
maintains an on-gotng dialogue
with local communities Currently
we are reviewing all our
community programmes We
expect from this review to
develop a long term sustainable
development programme
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Medium Not Applicable
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Reserves and Resources
Mineral Resource Statement

The Vatukoula Gold Mine (VGM) Mineral Resource estimate 1s classified and reported in Table 1 below, 1n accordance
with the 2004 JORC Code’

Table 1 VGM Mineral Resources at 31 August 2012

Mineral Measured Indicated Inferred
Resource Tonnes Grade Contained Tonnes Grade Contained Tonnes Grade Contained
{Mt) {q/t Au) Gold (M) {g/t Au} Gold ('t Au) Gold
{Moz)

Underground
BWAIKELEK

Note Values are rounded and may not add correctly in this table
The 2012 Mineral Resource estimate 1s compared to the 2011 Mineral Resource in Table 2

Table 2 Companscon with 2011 Mineral Resource

Classification 2012 2011
Grade Contained Tonnes Grade Contained
{9/t Au) Gold (M) {git Au) Gold
(Moz)
Measured Resource 77 62 156 74 60 14
Hndicated RESCUFCBREIE & =7~ 4, % e BQ =, & T 2T- S| o @ SRS AT a8 8 T dlIERERL3 e B0
Inferred Rescurce 91 48 14 46 a7 15
Total Mineral Resource 212 62 42 Tp e MB4EEERE Y, 80 U, P Y424 5

Overall, the Mineral Resource has decreased by 50,000 ounces compared with 2011 Mineral Resources These changes
are attnbutable to

. reductions due to depletion of the models between faces — 80,000 ounces of gold
. reductions due to remnterpretation of previously modelled minerahsed structures — 110,000 ounces of gold
. inclusion of the Wakatakata Mineral Resource of 140,000 ounces

Underground Mineral Resource

AMC Consultants Pty Ltd (AMC) completed a Mineral Resource estimate for the VGM using geological and assay data
avallable at 31 May 2012 The data supplied by VGM allowed AMC to generate a constrained grade model and estimate a
Mineral Resource AMC estimated the Mineral Resources using the end of July 2012 surveyed face positions The Mineral
Resources at 31 August 2012 were estimated by subtracting the production for the month of August 2012

The VGM Mineral Resource estimate 1s classified into Measured, Indicated, and inferred Mineral Resources based on the
current dnllhole spacing, qualty of the dnling information and confidence n the geological controls on the gold
mineralisaton and grade continuty The Mineral Resource estimate includes Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources
that will convert to Ore Reserves on application of modifying factors

The information i this statement of underground Mineral Resources s based on information compiled by Mr John Tyrrell,
who 1s a Member of the Ausiralasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a full-time employee of AMC Consuitants Pty
Ltd Mr Tyrrell has sufficient relevant expenence to be a Competent Person as defined by the JORC Code Mr Tyrrell
consents to the inclusion of this information i the form and context in which it appears Mineral Resources hsted as being
prepared by AMC were estimated under the direct supervision of Mr Tyrrell

The following notes highhght assumptions used to generate the VGM underground Mineral Resource estimate
. The Mineral Resource models use geological and assay data available at 31 May 2012

. Samples were prepared and analysed at the on-site Vatukoula laboratory using fire assay using a 25g charge with
atomic absorption spectrometry (AAS) finish

! Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves, The JORC Code 2004 Edition, Effective
December 2004, Prepared by the Joint Ore Reserves Committee of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, Australian
Institute of Geoscientists and Minerals Council of Austrahia (JORC)
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. The mineralised envelope was defined using geological logging and assay information from diamond drillholes A
grade varnable (the product of the horizontal or vertical intercept width and grade expressed as m g/t Au) was used
to interpret the mineralised envetope using a nominal cut-off of 1 m g/t Au

. Extrapolation of the interpreted mineralised structures was limited to 50 m between section lines and 25 m at the
end of each sechion
. The estimation method used 3D wireframe and block modeling projected to a 2D plane, with ordinary knging

interpolation The grade vanable was estimated using parameters derved from modelled semi-vaniograms and
geostatistical analysis The intercept width was estimated separately and the grade back-calculated Top-cuts were
applied to the grade vanable to imit the influence of outher values

. In situ density data was avallable from dnllhole sampling Densiies were assigned to each of the modelled
structures based on the averages from all available samples

. A cutoff of 4 m g/t Au and a gold grade cut-off 2 g/t Au were applied to the resource models to obtain the reported
Mineral Resources

. The Mineral Resource models were depleted for mining to 31 August 2012, using surveyed mine outiines to 31 July
2012 and production figures for August 2012

. The metallurgical response for the orebodies 1s well understood from actual production No recovery factors were

applied to the Mineral Resource estimate

Waikatakata Mineral Rescurce

The information for the Waikatakata Mineral Resource 1s based on information compiled by Mrs Rachae! Birch, who 1s a
Member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a full-tme employee of AMC Consultants Pty Lid Mrs
Birch has sufficient relevant experience to be a Competent Person as defined by the JORC Code Mrs Birch consents to
the inclusion of this information In the form and context in which i appears No previous Mineral Resource has been
reported for Walkatakata

The following notes highlights assumptions used to generate the Waikatakata Mineral Resource estimate

. The Walkatakata Mineral Resource estimate was completed in October 2011 using 11 diamond dnlilholes and 133
reverse circulation drillholes for a total drilled length of 4,338 m A twin dnllhcle programme was completed in 2011
Four twin dramond drillholes were drilled into the broader Walkatakata area

. The Mineral Resource estimate 1s based on the interpretation of mineralised zones using a nominal lower gold cut-
off grade of 0 3 g/t Au The interpretation was constrained within the contact breccia, andestte, and tuff units and
between 8,400 m E and 9,500 m E

. All twin drill core samples were prepared and assayed at the VGM site laboratory All samples were analysed for
gold by fire assay on a 50 g charge with AAS finish
. Dnilhole samples were composited to a dominant length of 1 m Residual composites (less than 1 m) were retained

for estmation
A global bulk density value of 2 5 tym® was assigned to the model

Estimation of gold was completed using ordinary knging with estmation parameters denved from modelled semi-
vanograms

Tailings Mineral Resource
The Tailings Mineral Resource estimate 1s an eshmate developed by CSA Global (CSA) In March 2008, CSA comptled an
independent Competent Persons Report titled "An Independent Competent Persons report for River Diamonds Plc
covering the Vatukoula Gold Mine in Fyi, the Panguma Prospect in Sterra Leone and the Rio Novo Gold Prospect in
Brazil" (CSA CPR), for inclusion in the application for readmission to trading on the Alternative Investment Market (AlM) of
the London Stock Exchange

The CSA CPR reported the 2006 Mineral Resources, including the Taiings Mineral Resource, according to the JORC
Code No further estimates or data are available at the time of this report AMC cannot verfy the estmate and allocate a
low reliability to the estimate

The Tailings Mineral Resource 1s 0 2 Moz, and approximately 10% of the total Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources
at VGM AMC considers that the Talings Mineral Resource may provide an opportunity to improve the output of the
operation, but 1s not matenal to the total Mineral Resources VGM plans to review the tailings resource in conjunction with
the results of exploration programmes to determine the preferred means to extract the contained gold VGM production
plans do not include the Tailings Mineral Resource pending this review and conversion of Mineral Resources to Ore
Reserves
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Ore Reserve Statement
The 2012 Ore Reserve estimate 1s based on the 2011 Mineral Resource estimate

Based on the mine design generated by AMC and within the Measured and Indicated Mineral Resource portions of the
underground VGM deposits, AMC estimated a Proved and Probable Ore Reserve of 2 7 Mt at 7 9 g/t Au for contamned gold
of 0 70 Moz using a gold pnce of US$1400/0z with a 4 48 g/t Au cut-off

The method used to determine the 2012 QOre Reserve estimate required stopes to be spht into panels to allow some
stopes to be partially mined, such that only the panels with an ore reserve classificaton were considered Access
development to the ore reserve stopes was added to the mine plan if the panel met the Ore Reserve classification

The VGM Ore Reserve estimate s classified and reported in Table 3 in accordance with the JORC Code

Table 3 VGM Ore Reserves at 31 August 2012 compared with 2011 Ore Reserves

2012 201
P — Tonnes Grade Contained Grade Contained
Classification Gold Gold
{git Au) {Moz) {g/t Au)
Proved Ore Reserve 7 018 1
iProbable’OreiReseVeETRIEY 18 & i A0 B bl B e e T 0 52 FURFEL S50 3ERNEES T, 17 570 0755 fa
Tota) Ore Reserve 28 79 Q70 29 79 074

Note Values are reunded and may not add correctly in this table

The reduction m 2012 Ore Reserve estimate from the 2011 Ore Reserve estmate 1s mamnly attnbutable to mining
depletion over the past year

Mineral Resources were converted to Ore Reserves recognising the level of confidence in the Mineral Resource estimate
and reflecting any moedifying factors Ore Reserves are included in the Mineral Resources estimate

The metal prices, grades, recovenes and costs were used to identify mineable blocks to be included in the Ore Reserve
estimate The meta! prices and exchange rate used in the Ore Reserve estimate are

. Gold US$1400/0z
. Exchange Rate F$100=US$0 54

The underground Ore Reserve estimates comprise the portions of the Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources for
which the appropniate mine planning has been undertaken and can be economically mined The Ore Reserves are derived
from the Mineral Resources by application of cut-off grades, stoping heights, dilution factors and extraction ratio

The Proved Qre Reserve estimate 1s based on Mineral Resources classified as Measured Resource, while the Probable
Ore Reserve estimate 1s based on Mineral Resources classified as Indicated Resource after consideration of all mining,
metallurgical, social, environmental, statutory, and financial aspects of the project

The Ore Reserve statement 1s based on information compiled by Mr Kevin Oborne under the direct supervision of Mr
David Lee Mr Kevin Obome 1s a Member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and Mr Lee 1s a Fellow of
the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and both are full-time employees of AMC Consultants Pty Ltd Mr Lee
has sufficient relevant experience to be a Competent Person as defined by the JORC Code

The following notes highlight assumptions used to estmate the VGM Ore Reserve estimate

Cut-off grade of 4 48 g/t Au

Mirnimum stope mining wadth of 1 18 m

10% stope and development mining dilution
95% mining recovery in development headings
85% mining recovery in stopes

AMC estimated the Ore Reserves using the end of August 2012 surveyed face positions
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Board of Directors

| C Orr-Ewing, Non -Executive Chairman, age 70

Mr Orr-Ewing has been mvolved in the natural resources sector for 37 years His expenence covers both the ol and
mining Industnes and he has been a director of UK and Canadian ol companies and Insh and Canadian mining
companies Currently Mr Orr-Ewing also advises a fund management company on its natural resources portfolios He
began his career as an investment manager for the Shell Pension Fund in London after completing his education as a
Chartered Accountant He was deeply involved in the oil industry from 1971 through to 1987 with numerous compantes in
the North Sea, Libya, Nigena and Algena

D K Paxton, Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), age 58

Mr Paxton 15 a professional engineer with over 36 years’' experence in the mining industry, starting with mine production at
Gold Fields of South Africa, and then time at their head office and culminating with 24 years as a mining analyst As a
mining analyst he has worked for a number of Canadian and UK stockbrokers

K C Morzana, Finance Director, age 38

Mr Morzarna holds a Bachelor of Engineenng (Industnal Geoclogy) from the Cambome School of Mines and an MBA
(Finance) from CASS Business School He has 13 years of expenence in the mineral resource industry covering gold and
diamonds Mr Morzana spent tus first four years in exploration, mining and civil engineenng working for Highland Gold,
Firestone Diamonds and CL Associates He was appointed Finance Director of Vatukoula Gold Mines Pic 1n 2004

D A Lemgas, Non- executive Director, age 51 (Resigned 4th January 2012)

Mr Lenigas has over 25 years of expenence in the gold, diamond, coal and base metals industries Dawid 1s a Mining
Engineer with a Bachelor of Apphed Science (Mining Engineenng - with distinction) He 1s the Chairman of Leni Gas & O
Plc , Sole Qil Plc, and 1s also a non-executive director of Rare Earth Minerals Plc

J | Stalker, Non-executive Director, age 61 (Resigned 2nd January 2013)

Mr Stalker 1s the Chief Executive Officer of Brazilian Gold Corporation, a Toronto-listed gold mining company He has cver
thirty years of development and operational mining experience in Eurcpe, Afnica and Australia He has worked his way up
from operational roles in the base and precious metals arenas to executive positions In some of the largest mining
companies In the world Mr Stalker was CECQ of Berkeley Resources Ltd, CEO of UraMin Inc ("UraMin"}, and a Vice
President of Gold Fields Ltd , the fourth largest gold producer in the world at the tme

J F Kearney, Non-executive Director, age 61

Mr Kearney 1s the Chairman and President of Canadian Zinc Corporation with over 30 years' experience in the mimng
industry worldwide With degrees in law, economics and business administration, he has a strong background n corporate
development, finance and managing public companies, pnmarnly in the mining field

J A MacPherson, Non-executive Director, age 70

Mr MacPherson 1s a Director of and founding chawrman of Canadian Zinc Corporation He has been active in public
markets, corporate finance and corporate development for over 30 years Dunng this time he has led the strategic
development of several successful ventures, pnmanly in the fields of mining and oll and gas Throughout his career he has
served as director of many private and public corporations histed on the Toronto, AMEX and London Stock Exchanges
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Directors' Report

The directors are pleased to present this year's annual report together with the consolidated and company financial
statements for the year ended 31 August 2012

Pnncipal activities

The pnincipal activity of the Group was the operation of the Vatukoula Gold Mine in Fiyi as descnbed on page 1 of the
Business Review The principal activity of the Company was that of a holding Company for its subsidiary undertakings,
which are set out in Note 16 of the financial statements

Results and dividends

The loss on ordinary activifies of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2012 after taxation was £7 1 milien (2011 loss
of £2 3 milhon)

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2011 mil}
Business review

A review of the current and future development of the Group's business 1s given in the business review section of this
report on pages 1 to 34

Given the nature of business and industry the key performance indicators are based on financial and operational
objectives set at the beginmng of the year Performance in relation to these 1s huighlighted on pages 10 and 11

The Business Review sets out a comprehensive review of the development and performance of VGM's business for the
year ended 31 August 2012 and the future developments The Business Review is set out on pages 1 1o 34 of this annual
report All information detailed in these pages 1s incorporated by reference into this Directors’ Report and 1s deemed to
form part of this Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Statement

The corporate governance statement set out on pages 33 to 34 1s incorporated by reference into thus Directors’ Report and
1s deemed to form part of this Directors' Report

Post balance sheet events

Al the date these financial statements were approved, being 9 January 2013, the directors were not aware of any
significant post balance sheet events other than those set out in Note 33 of the financial statements

Future developments
A review of our future developments is given in the Review by the Chief Executive Officer on pages Sto 7
Financial sk management

The Group's operations expose It to financial risks that include quidity nsk, interest rate and foreign exchange nsk The
Group does not use denvative financial instruments to manage any of these nsks nor 1s hedge accounting applied

The Group depends on the Vatukoula Gold Mine for a substantial portion of its revenue and cash flow and, therefore, the
Group's business will be harmed If VGM's revenues are adversely affected A review of this nsk 1s given in our Risk
Management section on page 22

Given the size of the Group, the directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitonng financial nsk management to

a sub-committee of the board The Group's finance department implements the polices set by the board of directors
Further details of the Group's exposure to nisks ansing from financial instruments held are provided in note 26
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Liquidsty nisk
The Group actively manages s working finance to ensure the Group has sufficient funds for current operations As
referred to in Note 3 of the financial statements, it 1s for fhus reason that the directors believe it 1s appropnate to prepare

the financial statements on a going concern basis

Interest rate cash flow nsk

Interest beanng assets are only cash balances that earn interest at a floating rate The Group does not have any varniable
rate debt and therefore it 1s not exposed to interest rate cash flow nsk on its debt

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group operates in Fij and Brazil The board has assessed its exposure, the detals of which are provided in note
26(1) This situation 1s monitored on a regular basis, and as such the directors do not cumrently consider it necessary to
enter into forward exchange contracts

Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument, fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and anses principally from the Group's recesvables from customers The Group has credit nsk
management policies In place and exposures to credit nsk are monitored on an ongoing basis Management generally
adopts conservative strategies and a tight control on credit policy

Directors’ insurance
The Company has taken out an insurance policy to indemnify the directors and officers of the Company against liability
when acting for the Group

Directors

The following directors have held office duning the year
I C Orr-Ewing

D K Paxton

K C Morzana

D A Lenigas (Resigned 4" January 2012)

J | Stalker (Resigned 2nd January 2013)

J F Kearney

J A MacPherson

Directors’ interests

Directors’ interests, including family interests in the ordinary shares, were as follows

Beneficial Holding

31 August 2012 31 August 2011
| C Orr-Ewing* 522,682 517,774
D K Paxton 175,000 135,000
K Morzana 47,280 40,940
D A Lenigas (Resigned 4" January 2012) 20,000 20,000
J | Stalker (Resigned 2nd January 2013) - -
J F Kearney - -

J A MacPherson - .

* of which 211,107 (2011 211,107} are held beneficially
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Directors also hold options over ordinary shares as follows

Number of Options

31 August 2012 31 August 2011
| C Omr-Ewing 300,000 300,000
D K Paxton 1,000,000 1,000,000
K C Morzana 700,000 700,000
D A Lenigas (Resigned 04 January 2012) 700,000 700,000
J | Stalker (Resigned 2nd January 2013) 700,000 700,000
J F Kearney 400,000 400,000
J A MacPherson 400,000 400,000

Political and chantable donations
The Group made no chantable or political donations dunng the year (2011 nil)
Substantial shareholdings

As at 20 November 2012 the following had notified the Company of disclosable interests of 3% or more in the nominal
value of the Company's shares

Ordinary shares of 5 p %
HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) 29,000,000 2467%
*Canaccord Nominees Limited 12,673,380 10 78%
Roy Nominees Limited 7,811,344 6 64%
Vidacos Nominees Limited 5,830,600 4 96%
BNY Mellon Nominees Limited 5,060,575 4 30%
Ferhm Nominees Limited 4,395,371 374%
Total 64,771,270 55 09%

* These shares are held by Canaccord Nominees Limited on behalf of and for the benefit of Canadian Zinc Corporation
Policy on payment of creditors

The Company seeks to maintain good terms with all of its trading partners It does not follow any specific code or
standard on payment practice However, it 1s the company's policy to agree appropnate terms and conditions for its
transactions with suppliers, to ensure that the supplers are made aware of those terms and, provided the suppher has
comphed with its obhgations, to abide by the terms of payment agreed In the current year the company moved to 30 day
payment terms, from prepayment terms in 2011  Trade creditor days of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2012
were 69 days (2011 33 days)

Related Party Transactions
Details of related party transactions during the year are set out at note 28 to the financial statements

Going concern

After making engquines, the directors have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial stalements, that there
Is a reasonable expeciation that the company and the group as a whole have adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason the directors have adopted the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial statements Further detatls are provided in note 3
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Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution proposing that Mazars LLP be re-appointed will
be put o the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with EU endorsed
International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS’), interpretations of IFRS Interpretations Committee and those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 apphcable to companies reperting under IFRS Company law requires directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial penod which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the profit and loss for that period In prepanng the financral statements, directors are required to

» select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, comparable, understandable and prudent,
« ensure the financial statements comply with IFRS,

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Group will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial posihion of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Compames Act 2006 The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are also responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Group's website on the intermet However,
information 1s accessible in many different countnes where legislation governing preparation and documentation of
financial statements may differ from that applcable in the United Kingdom

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving the report 1s aware, all relevant audit infermation, being
information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing the report, has been provided or made available to the
auditor Having made enquines of fellow directors, each director has taken all the steps that he 1s obliged to have taken as
a director 1n order to have made himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's
audrtors are ayare of that information

K C Morzana
Director
9 January 2013
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Corporate Governance Statement
Compliance with UK Corporate Governance Code

The directors recognise the value of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance that was 1ssued in September 2012 by
the Financial Reporting Council and whilst under AIM rules full comphance 1s not regquired, the directors believe that the
Company applies the Main Pnnciples insofar as 1s practicable and appropnate for a public company of its size

Qutlined below 13 a summary of how the company applies the Main Principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code

Board of Directors

The board of directors compnises two executive directors, and four non-executive directors, one of whom 1s the Chairman
The directors are of the opimion that the board comprises a sudable balance and that the recommendations of the
Combined Code have been implemented to an appropniate level The board, through the Chief Executive Officer and the
Finance Director in particular, maintains regular contact with its adwvisers and public relations consulants in order to
ensure that the board develops an understanding of the views of major shareholders about the company

Board Meetings

In addition to ad hoc meetings arranged to discuss particular transactions and events and the AGM, the full board met
seven times dunng the year ending 31 August 2012 The board 15 responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving
the Company's strategy, financial activities and operating performance Day to day management 1s devolved to the
executive directors who are charged with consulling the board on all significant financial and operational matters
Consequently decisions are made promptly and following consultation amongst the directors concemed where necessary
and appropnate

All necessary information 1s supplied to the directors on a timely basis to enable them to discharge their duttes effectively,
and all directors have access to independent professional advice, at the company's expense, as and when required

The Chief Executive Cfficer 1s available to meet with institutional shareholders to discuss any 1ssues and concerns
regarding the Group's governance The non-executive directors can also attend meetings with major shareholders 1f
requested

The parhicipation of both private and institutional investors at the Annual General Meeting I1s welcomed by the board
Internal controls

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company's and the Group's systems of internal control, which are
designed to safeguard the assets of the Group and ensure the relability of financial information for both internal use and
external publicaton Overall control I1s ensured by a regular detailed reporting system covering both technical progress of
a project and the state of the group's financial affars The board has put in place procedures for identifying, evaluating
and managing any significant nsks that face the group

Any system of intemal control can prowide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that matenal financial
iregularities will be detected or that the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives 1s elminated The direclors, having
reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial, operational and compliance controls and nsk management,
consider that the system of internal control operated effectively throughout the financial year and up to the date the
financial statements were signed

Committees

Each of the following committees has its own terms of reference

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive directors Its terms of reference indicate at least two regular
meetings per year The audl committee has met once during the current year The Audt Committee's pnmary

responsibiities are to review the effectiveness of the company's systems of internal control, to review with the external
auditors the nature and scope of thewr audit and the results of the audit, and to evaluate and select external auditors
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses of three non-executive directors It plans to meet at least twice in each year
The Remuneration Committee has met once dunng the year

The Company's policy 1s to remunerate senior executives fairly in such a manner as to facilitate the recruitment, retenhion
and motivation of staff The Remuneration Committee agrees with the board a framework for the remuneration of the
chairman, the executive directors and the senior management of the company The principal objective of the Committee
15 to ensure that members of the executive management of the Company are provided incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a farr and responsible manner, rewarded for therr individual contnbutions to the success of the
Company Non-executive fees are considered and agreed by the board as a whole
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc for the year ended 31 August 2012 which
compnse the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial
Position, Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated and Company Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation 1s applicable law
and Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2008

Respective responsibilihes of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responstbilites Statement set out on page 32, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB’s} Ethical Standards for Auditors This report 1s made solely to the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilty to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s prowided on the APB's web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scopefprivate cfm

Opinton on the financial statements

In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affars as at
31 August 2012 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,

¢ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Uruon,

e the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our optmion the information given in the Directors’ Repert for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report {o you

if, In our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting recerds and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit

Richard Metcalfe (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bndge House

St Kathanne's Way

London E1W 1DD

Date 9 January 2013
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Notes 2012 2011
£000 £'000
Turnover 4 54,925 47,964
Cost of sales 5 (53,544) (44,718)
Gross profit 1,381 3,246
Operating expenses
Adminisirative expenses (2,762) (2,301)
Foreign exchange gains 1,334 1,592
Depreciation and amortisation expense (6,551) (6,074)
Underlying operating loss (6,598) (3,537)
Inventory obsolescence wnte back 17 47 179
Gain on disposal of assets 27 -
Provision for mine rehabilitation 45 -
Provision for doubtful debt (expense) / write back 18 (993) 242
Share based payments expense 20 (627) (808)
Operating loss 6 (8,099) {3,924)
Interest recervable and other iIncome 8 65 98
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (111} (107)
Net loss before taxatton (8,145) {3,933)
Taxatioh 9 1,075 1,618
Loss for the penod {7,070) {2,315)
Attrnibutable to
Owners of the Parent (7,070) {2,315)
Non Controlling interest - -
(7,070) {2,315)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences 440 178
Total comprehensive loss (6,630) (2,137}
Attnbutable to
Owners of the Parent (6,630) (2137}
Non Controlling interest - -
Loss per share
Pence Pence
Basic 11 (7 81) (2 78)
Diluted 11 (7 81) (2 76)

All activities relate to continuing operations

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 36,841 34,057
Property, plant and equipment 13 25713 23,533
Mine properties and development 14 11,515 6,955
Total non-current assets 74,069 64,545
Current assets
Inventones 17 7,77 8,034
Trade and other recevables 18 6,383 7,794
Cash and cash equivalents 19 2,437 6,892
Total current assets 16,591 22,720
Total Assets 90,660 87,265
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 21 10,053 4,229
Provisions 22 1,073 664
Borrowings 23 - 5
Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund 24 1,189 1,558
Total current iabilities 12,315 6,456
Non-current Liabilities
Provisions 22 3,320 4,141
Convertible loan 25 Ky 341
Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund 24 15 13
Deferred tax lability 32 6,758 7,776
Total non-current habilities 10,410 12,271
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 20 4,828 4,378
Share premium account 81,659 76,709
Merger reserve 2,167 2167
Foreign exchange reserve 1,022 582
Qther reserves 2,882 2,358
Accumulated losses (24,623) (17,656)
Total shareholders’ equity 67,935 68,538
Tofal habilities and shareholders' equity 90,660 87,265

Approved e Board and authonsed for 1ssue on 9 January 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by

Morzana
Director
9 January 2013

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company Registration No 5059077

Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Assets
Non-current assets
Investment 1n subsidiary companies 16 49,495 46,729
Property, plant and equipment 13 - 250
Available for sale investments 15 - -
Total non-current assets 49,495 46,979
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 24,432 17,032
Cash and cash equivalents 19 270 4,774
Total current assets 24,702 21,806
Total Assets 74,197 68,785
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 21 193 197
Non-current Liabilities
Convertible loan 25 317 3
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 20 4,828 4,378
Share premium account 81,659 76,709
Other reserves 2,882 2,358
Accumulated losses {15,682) (15,198)
Total shareholders” equity 73,687 68,247
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 74197 68,785

Approv y the Board and authonsed for issue on 9 January 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by

K C Morzana
Director
9 January 2013

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc

Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

As at 31 August 2012

Equity

Share component

Ordinary based of

share Share payment convertible  Accumulated

capital premium reserve loan note losses Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2011 4,378 76,709 2,313 45 (15,198) 68,247
Loss for the year - - - - (587) (587)
Total comprehensive income - - - - (587) (587)
Issue of shares 450 4,950 - - - 5,400
Cost of share 1ssue - - - - - -
Share option expired - - (103) - 103 -
Convertible loan - - - - - -
Share based payments - - 627 - - 627
Balance at 31 August 2012 4,828 81,659 2,837 45 {15,682) 73,687

Equity

Share component

Ordinary based of

share Share payment convertible  Accumulated

capital premum reserve loan note losses Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2010 4,031 69,699 1,538 53 (12,843} 62,479
Loss for the year - - - - (2,392} (2,392)
Total comprehensive mcome - - - - (2,392) (2,392)
Issue of shares 344 7,372 - - - 7.716
Cost of share issue - (385) - - - (385)
Share option expired - - (18) - 18 -
Convertible loan 3 23 - 8 19 37
Share based payments - - 792 - - 792
Balance at 31 Aug 2011 4,378 76,709 2,313 45 (15,198) 68,247

Share premium The share premwm reserve represents the consideration that has been recewved In excess of the
nominal value of shares on 1ssue of new ordinary share capital

Share based payment reserve The share-based payment reserve represents cumulative amounts charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of share based payment arrangements, where it has not yet been setiled

by means of an award of shares

Equity component of convertible loan note The equity component of the convertble loan notes represents the

remaining equity component of convertible notes which has not yet been converted n shares

Accumulated losses The accumulated losses represent profits and losses retained in previous and current penod

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2012

Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss for the period 6 (8,099) {3.924)

Adjustments for

Share based payments 20 627 808
Oepreciation and amortisation 6,551 6,074
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of property plant equipment (27) 5
Reversal of allowance for inventery obsolescence 17 (47) (179)
Foreign exchange gans (429) (1,202)
Provision for doubtful debts 18 993 (242)
Prowvision for mine rehabilitation 22 (45) -
Movements in Employment Provisions 22 411 235
Net operating (loss) / income before changes i working capitat (65) 1,575
Payment to Vatukoula Soctal Assistance TFrust Fund 24 (397) -
Decrease / (increase) In \nventories 17 492 (1,577}
Decrease / (increase) In receivables 18 561 (2,079)
Increase / {decrease) in accounts payable 21 5,666 (231)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 6,257 (2,312}

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for intangible assets 12 (4,164) {2,667)
Purchase of property plant and equipment 13 (7.245) {6,532)
Payments for mine properties and development 14 {4,952) (1,898)
Proceeds from disposals of property plant and equipment 233 -
Interest receved 8 65 94
Net cash used in investing activities (16,063) (11,003)
Cash flows before financing (9,808) (13,315)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssuance of shares 20 5,400 7.716
Costs of issue of shares - (385)
Interest pad (88) (18)
Repayment of borrowings 23 (5) (45}
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,307 7,268
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,499) (6.047)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19 6,892 12,849
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents 44 90
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 2,437 6,892
2,437 6,892

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral pan of these financiat statements
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Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss for the year [ (2,178} (2,408)
Adjustments for
Share based payments expense 20 360 128
Net operating loss before changes in working capital (1,818) (2.280)
Increase In recevables 18 (8,060) {10,670}
Decrease In accounts payable 21 4) (121)
Net cash used in operating activities (9,882) (13,071)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recewved 8 53 62
Net cash provided by investing activities 53 62
Cash flows before financing (9,829) {13,009) .
Cash flows from financing activities I
Proceeds from 1ssuance of shares 20 5,400 7,716
Costs of Issue of shares - (385)
interest paid (75) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,325 7,331
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {4,504} (5,678)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19 4,774 10,452
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 270 4,774

The notes on pages 44 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements

43




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2012

1 General information

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc is registered in England and Wales under number 5059077 The Company 1s govemed by its
articles of association and the principal statute governing the Company 1s the Compames Act 2006 The Company’s
registered office is situated at 5th floor, Carmelite, Victona Embankment, Blackfnars, London, EC4Y 0LS The Company Is
Iisted on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange

The nature of the Group's and Company’s operations and pnncipal activities are set oui in the Directors’ Report on page
29

2 Basis of preparation

The consoldated financial statements of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc and all its subsidianes {the ‘Group’) have been
prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use by the European
Union

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (GBP) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000) except
when otherwise indicated

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and Company in the preparation of the financial statements are
set out below

The Board has reviewed the accounting policies set out in the financial statements and considers them to be most
appropnate to the Group's business

These financial statements are presented in sterhng  Group revenues are in US dollars Given that the Fipan dollar i1s not
widely used as a reporting currency and that the parent company 1s hsted in the United Kingdom it 1s deemed appropnate
for the presentation currency of the Group to be 0 sterling

Statement of Compliance with IFRS

The Group's and Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS and interpretations) as adopted by the European Union

New accounting standards

The Group and Company adopted IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures'— Transfers of Financial Assets’ There was
no Impact from the adoption of this standard as the Group did not transfer any financial instruments dunng the year

There was no matenal effect of other IFRS's, IAS's and IFRIC’s that came into effect in the year, as these new or
amended standards, amendments and interpretations did not apply to operations of the Group and the Company

The Group and the Company have not applied the following standard, amendments and interpretations that are applicable
and have been 1ssued, but are not yet effective

New/Revised International Financial Issued Effective Date
Reporting Standards
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial June 2011 Annua! penods beginming on or after 1 July 2012
Statemenis

— Amendments to rewise the
way other comprehensive
income 1s presented

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure November 2009 Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
- Revised definiton of 2011
related parties
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2 Basis of preparation {continued)
New/Revised International Financial Issued Effective Date
Reporting Standards
IAS 12 Income Taxes December 2010 | Annual penods beginming on or after 1 January
— Limited scope 2012
amendment (recovery of
underlying assets)
IFRS 13 Farr Value measurement Onginal 1Issue Annual penods beginming on or after 1 January
May 2011 2013
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Cnginal 1ssue Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
Statements May 2011 2013
IAS 19 Employee benefits Amended June Annua! penods beginning on or after 1 January
— Amended standards 2011 2013
resulting from the post-
Employee benefits and
termination benefits
projects
IAS 27 Consohdated and May 2011 Annual penods beginning cn or after 1 January
Separate Financial 2013
Statements
—~ Reissued as IAS 27
Separate Financial
Statements {as amended
in 2011)
IAS 28 Investments in Associates | May 2011
— Reissued as 1AS28 Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
Investments in Associates 2013
and Joint Ventures (as
amended in 2011)
IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Cngnal 1ssue Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Statements September 2012 2014
— Amendment Investment
Entities
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements Onginal 1ssue Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
May 2011 2014
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Onginal 1ssue Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January

other Entities

May 2011

2014
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2 Basis of preparation (continued)

New/Revised International Financial Issued Effective Date
Reporting Standards

Improvements | Amendments to various May 2011
to IFRSs standards and interpretations Annual penods beginning on or after 1
affecting the scope, January 2013

recognition, measurement,
presentation and/for

disclosure
Annual penods beginning on or after 1
IFRIC20 Strnipping costs in the January 2013
production phase of a
surface mine
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ October 2009 Annual penods beginning on or after 1

January 2015

The directers expect that the adoption of the above pronouncements will have no matenal impact to the financial
statements in the period of initial applications

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
{a) Bas:is of consolidation

The consoclidated financial information incorporates the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes (the
“Group”) Control s achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvibies

With the exception of foreign exchange vanances on inter-company finance balances, Inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealsed gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated, unrealised losses are alsc
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used
in ine with those used by the Group

{b}) Going concern

The Group’s business actvities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out In the Business Review section of this report The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity position
and borrowing facilihes are descnbed n the financial review In addition note 26 to the financial statements include the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives and details of
its financial instruments and it its exposure to credi and hquidity nsk

In assessing the Group's going concern the Directors have taken into account the above factors, including the financiat
position of the Group and n particular its cash posttion, the current gold price and market expectation for the same over
the medium term, and the Groups capital expenditure and financing plans

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonable possible changes in gold price, mining costs and the
concentration of the gold in the ore delivered to the mill, show that the Group should be able to operate using its current
cash postion The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in
prepanng the annual financial statements
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Business combinations

The purchase method of accounting I1s used to account for the acquisttion of subsidianes by the Group The cost of the
acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, habiities incurred
or assumed and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree  Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses The acquiree's dentifiable assets, habiihes and
contingent lhabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at therr
fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 “Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, which are recognised and
measured at fair value less costs to sell

Where there 15 a difference between the Group's interest in the net farr value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, labilities
and contingent habihties and the cost of the business combination, any excess cost 1s recogrnised In the statement of
financial position as goodwill and any excess net far value 1s recognised smmediately in the profit or loss as negative
goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary The nen-controlling interest in the acquiree 1s initially measured at the non-conirolling
interest proportion of the net farr value of the assets, habiliies and contingent liabilites recognised

{d} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from
those Involving esttmations and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmsed n the
consolidated financial statements

1 Income taxes (see note 9)

The Group 1s subject to income taxes in the United Kingdom, Fij and Brazil Significant judgement 1s required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determunation i1s uncertain dunng the ordinary course of business Where the final tax outcome of these
matters 1s different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax
provisions in the penod in which such determination 1s made

2 Mineral Resources and Reserves

Quantification of mineral resources requires a judgement on the reasonable prospects for eventual economic extraction
Quantification of ore reserves requires a judgement on whether mineral resources are economically mineable These
Judgements are based on the assessment of mining, metallurgical, economic, marketing, legal, environmental, social and
governmental factors involved, in accordance with the Australasian Code for Reporting Exploration Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves These factors are a source of uncertainty and changes could result in an increase or
decrease In mineral resources and ore reserves This would in tum affect certain amounts in the financial statements such
as amortisation, rehabiitation provisions which are calculated on a projected kfe of mine figures

3 Provisions and Contingent Lrabilities (notes 22 & 31)

Judgements are made as to whether a past event has led to a habity that should be recogmised in the financial
statements or disctosed as a contingent hability Quantifying any such liability often involves judgements and estimations
These judgements are based on a number of factors including the nature of the clam or dispute, the legal process and
potential amount payable, legal advice received, previous expenience and the probability of a loss being realised Several
of these factors are a source of eshimation uncertainty

4 Inventory Valuations
Valuations of gold stockpiles, gold in circuit and gold within the fine ore bin requires estimations of the amount contained
in, and the recovery rates from, the vanous work in progress gold circuits These estimations are based on analysis of

samples and prior expenence A judgement I1s also applied when the gold in circuit will be recovered and what gold pnce
should be applied in calculating the net realisable value, these are both sources of uncertainty
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the application of eshmates and assumptions on future events, which
affects assets and habiliies at the reporting date and income and expenditure for the perrod The estimates and underiying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recegnised in the penod in which
the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that perniod, or in the penod of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future penods

The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenial adjustment to the carrying amounts
of certain assets and habilities within the next annual reporting perniod are

5 Share-based payment transactions (see note 20)

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied transactons with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
Instruments at the date at which they are granted The fair value 1s determined using the Black-Scholes model The Black-
Scholes mode! 1s particularly sensitive to volatlity calculation Therefore any change in the methodology of the calculation
of volatiity will impact the amount expensed as share based payments on the statement of comprehensive income

The value expensed in the statement of comprehensive Income 1s £627,000 (2011 £808,000)
6 Intangible assets (see note 12)

Amortisation

intangible assets (other than goodwill) are amortised over therr useful lives  Useful lives are based on management's
estimates of the perod that the assels will generate revenue, which are pencdically reviewed for continued
appropnateness Due to the long lives of assets, changes to the estimates used can result in significant vanances in the
carrying value

The Group assesses the mparrment of intangible assets subject to amortisation or depreciation whenever events or
changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable Factors considered important that
could tnigger an impairment review include the following

- significant underperformance relative to histoncal or projected future operating results,
- significant changes in the manner cof the use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business, and
- significant negative industry or economic trends

The complexity of the estimation process and Issues related to the assumptions, nsks and uncertainties inherent In the
application of the Group's accounting estimates in relation to intangible assets affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements, especially the estimates of the expected useful economic lives and the carrying values of those assets If
business conditions were different, or if different assumptions were used n the application of this and other accounting
estimates, 1t 1s hkely that matenally different amounts could be reporied in the Group's financial statements In particular it
would affect, the value of the intangible asset and rehabilitation provisions

The carrying value at the reporting date of the intangible assets 1s £36,841,000 (2011 £34,057,000)

7 Mine Rehabilitatton Provisions

Such provisions require a judgement on hkely future obligations, based on assessment of technical, legal and economic
factors The ulbimate cost of environmental remediation 1s uncertain and cost eshmates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes in the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques and changes
to the Wfe of mine Changes to any of these costs will affect amounts in the financial statement such, the mine asset and
the provision for mine rehabilitation

The carrying value at the reporting date of the mine rehabilitation provision 1s £3,247,000 (2011 £4,092,000)
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
8 Allowance for doubtful debts (see note 18}

Each receivable balance 1s assessed to determine recoverability Prowisions are made for those debtors where evidence
indicates that recoverability 1s doubtful Amounts are wrtten off when they are deemed irrecoverable Any changes to
estimates made in relation to debtors recoverabiity may resuft in matenally different amounts being reported by the
Group's financial statements In particular any changes will affect trade and other receivable as well as the statement of
comprehensive Income

The carrying value at the reporting date of the provision for doubtful debts is £3,913,000 (2011 £2,861,000)

{e) Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s recognised when persuasive evidence exists that all of the following cntena are met

+ the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the product have been transferred to the buyer,

« neither continuing managernal Involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold has been retained,

« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

« 1tts probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale will flow to the Group, and

+ the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale can be measured reliably

Bullion sales

The transfer of nsks and rewards for the sale of the gold bullion 1s assessed as taking place when the physical possession
1s passed to the customer upon collection of the gold bullion from the mining premises The customer does not have any
nght of return subsequent to the physical transfer, and accordingly at this point revenue 1s recognised

Finance revenue

Interest revenue 1s recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method This 1s a method of caleulating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant penod using the effective
interest rate, which 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

(f) Turnover and Segmental Analysis

The reportable segments identified make up all of the Group's external revenue, which 1s denved pnmanly from the sale of
gold The reportable segments are an aggregation of the operating segments within the Group as prescribed by IFRS 8
The reportable segments are based on the Group's management structures and the consequent reporting to the Chief
Operating Decisicn Maker, the Board of Directors Qur sector results are attnbutable to unallocated head office corporate
costs, gold production & exploration costs, and other costs These reportable segments also correspond to geographicat
locations such that each reportable segment 15 1n a separate geographic location, | e , unattnbuted head office costs — UK,
gold mining — Fip, other activities — Brazil

Income and expenses Included in profit or loss for the year are allocated directly or indirectly to the reportable segments
Expenses allocated as either directly or indirectly attnbutable comprise cost of sales, gold duty and administrative
expenses

Non-current segment assets compnse the non-current assets used directly for segment operations, including intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and mine properties and development

Current segment assets compnse the current assets used directly for segment operations, including inventories, trade
recevables, other recevables and pre-payments

Inter-company balances compnse transactions between operating segments making up the reportable segments These
balances are elimmnated to arrive at the figures in the consolidated accounts
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

{g) The Company’s investments in subsidianes

In its separate financial statements the Company recogruses its investments in subsidianes at cost, less any impairment
for permanent diminution in value Differences ansing from changes in far values of intercompany loans receivable are
treated as an increase in the investment in the subsidiary

{h} Foreign currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (*£"), which is the parent company’s functional
currency and the Group's presentation currency Each entity in the Group determines it own functional currency and items
included n the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency The assets and liabilties
of these subsidhanes are translated into the presentation currency of Vatukoula Gold Mines Pic at the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date and their Statements of Comprehensive Income are translated at the average exchange rate
for the year The exchange differences ansing on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity

Al other differences ansing on translation are included in the profit or loss except for exchange differences ansing on non-
monetary assets and labilities where the changes in fair values are recognised directly in equity

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisitton of a foreign entity are treated as assets and llabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of Group entities’ separate financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary tems forming part of the Group's net investment in the overseas operation concerned are reclassified
to the foreign exchange reserve On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences recognised in
the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are transferred to the Statements of
Comprehensive Income as part of the profit or loss

{1) Goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of
acquisttion over the Group’s interest in the net far value of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities of the
subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisihton Goodwill 1s initially recognised as an asset at
cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

For the purpose of imparment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to
benefit from synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for
imparment annually, or more frequently when there 15 an indication that the unit may be impared If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit ts less than the carrying amount of the umit, the impairment loss 1s allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on ihe
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit  An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed In
subsequent penods

{) Inventories

Ore stock, consisting of stocks on which further processing 1s required to convert them to trading stocks, 1s valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value Cost s calculated using a weighted average cost model, where inventonies are
valued at the weighted average cost of the closing inventory Net realisable value 1s estimated selling price less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Other inventories include

()] Stores, compnsing plant spares and consumable stores are valued on the basis of weighted average cost after
providing for obsolescence

() Work in progress I1s valued on the basis of first in first out and includes direct costs, depreciation and amortisation

() Insurance spares are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value Insurance spares are critical spare parts
to equipment, that although may not be required on a regular basis are kept in inventory because, should a
particular piece of equipment fail it would matenally adversely affect production
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3 Summary of sigmficant accounting policies {continued)

) Inventones {continued)
Gold in circuit

Gold in circuit 1s valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnses direct matenal, labour and
transportation expenditure incurred in getting inventores to ther exishing location and condition, together with an
appropnate porlion of fixed and vanable overhead expenditure based on weighted average costs incurred durnng the
pertod 1n which such inventones were produced Net realisable value 1s the amount anticipated to be reahsed from the
sale of inventory in the normal course of business less any anticipated costs to be incurred prior to its sale

(k) Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets, which consist of mining nghts and intangible computer software, are valued at cost less
accumulated amorhisation  Amortisation 1s catculated using the units of production method which 1s calculated over the Iife
span of the mine As at 31 August 2012, the estimated remaining life span of the mine 1s 8 years This 1s the entire penod
over which currently the mine 1s being amortised

The Group applies the full cost method of accounting for exploration and evaluation costs, having regard to the
requirements of IFRS 6 ‘Exploratton for and Evaluaton of Mineral Resources’ All costs associated with mining
development and investment are capitalised on a project by project basis pending determunation of the feasibiity of the
project Such expenditure compnses appropriate technical and administrative expenses but not general overheads

Such exploration and evaluation costs are capitalised provided that the Group’s nghts to tenure are current and one of the
following conditions 1s met

n such costs are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of interest or
alternatively by its sale, or

() the activities have nol reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of whether or not economically
recoverable resources exist, or

(m) active and significant operations in relation to the area are continuing

When an area of interest 1s abandoned or the directors decide that it 1s not commercial, any exploration and evaluation
costs previously capitalised in respect of that area are written off to profit or loss Amortisation does not take place unti
production commences in these areas Once production commences, amortisation is calculated on the unit of production
method, over the remaining life of the mine

Imparrment assessments are carned out regularly by the directors Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for
impairment when facts and arcumstances suggest thal the carrying amount may exceed its recoverable amount Such
indicators include the point at which a determination 1s made as to whether or not commercial reserves exist

The recoverability of captalised mining costs and mining interests 1s dependent upon the discovery of economically
recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the development of reserves
and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of recoverable reserves

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporing date  An assel’s
carrying value 1s written down immediately to its recoverable value If the asset's carrying amount 1s greater than s listed
recoverable amount

()] Tangible assets
() Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impaiwment losses
Cost 1s the farr value of consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction and includes
the direct cost of bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for operation and the estimated future cost of
closure and rehabilitation of the facility Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible assets to wrnite down the cost less
estimated residual value of each asset over its useful economic ife on a units of production method or straight line basts
The estimated useful lives are as follows

Freehold land Not depreciated
Plant and machinery Over 3 — 10 years
Mine Asset Life of mine basis
Motor vehicles Over 3 years
Fedures, fittings and equipment Cver 4 years
Work in progress Not depreciated
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)] Tangible assets (continued)

The depreciation charge for each period s recogrused in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the Work in Progress account The cost compnises its purchase
price and any costs directly atinbutable to bnnging it into working condiion for its intended use, at which point it 1s
transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment 1s capitalised when it 1s probable that future
economic benefits from the use of the asset will be increased All other subsequent expenditure 1s recognised as an
expense in the penod m which it s incurred

Repairs and maintenance which nerther matenally add to the value of assets nor appreciably prolong therr useful hives are
charged against income

The gan or loss ansing from the de-recognition of any items of property, plant and equipment 1s included n the profit or
loss when the item 1s de-recognised The gain or loss ansing from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment 1s determined as the difference between the net dispesal proceeds, If any, and the carrying amount of the item
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for imparrment when events or changes in
circumsiances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

() Mine properties and development (*“MPD"}

This represents the accumulated exploration, evaluation, development and acquisition expenditure in relation to areas of
interest in which economically recoverable reserves exist

Development costs that can be capitalised fall into the following categones

« [nitial Capital Development
This includes, but is not restncted to the following

o Shaft sinking

Station (plant) development & underground workshops
Pump station and dams

Ore and waste pass systems

cC 00

s Pnmary Capital Development
This 1s the development carned out on each level in the exploration and exploitation of a mining area or
crehody [t includes, but 1s not restricted to the following

o Cross cuts, haulages and dnives to the orebody
o imitial nises on the arebody to effect the first holdings to facilitate production
o Main airways

* Secondary Capital Development
This 1s the development camed out within an area in which the pnmary development has been
completed and which 15 cntical to the continued operation of the mine or mining arga It includes, but s
not restncted to the following

o Aurways, crosscuts and dnves
o Pump stations

The capitalised value of mine properties 1s depreciated on a life of mine basis The life of mine has been calculated on a
units of production method based on economically recoverable reserves and resources The depreciation for the pencd 1
calculated using the following

Recovered gold ounces during the penod X Net book value {o date plus costs
Economically recoverable reserves and resources at the capitalised duning the period
start of the penod

The net carrying value of a mine assets 1s reviewed regularly and, to the extent to which this amount exceeds its
recoverable amount (based on the higher of estimated future net cash flows and the mine's asset's current reahsable
value} that excess 1s fully provided aganst in the financial year in which this 1s determined
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{m)  Prowvision for mine rehabilitation

A provision for rehabilitation 1s initially recogrused at the present value of expected future cash flows when there exists a
constructive obligation for the entity to undertake rehabiltation at the mine site  When provisions for closure and
rehabilitation are mibally recognised, the corresponding cost 1s capitalised as an asset, representing part of the cost of
acquinng the future economic benefits of the operation The capitalised cost of closure and rehabilitation activiies 1s
recognised in property, plant and equipment and depreciated accordingly The increase in the provision for rehabilitation
relating to the unwinding of the discount on the provision to the date of setttement of the provision and the depreciation of
the rehabihtation asset are recorded within profit or foss

{n) Impairment of intangible and tangible assets excluding goodwill

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an indication thai an asset may be impaired If any such
indication exists, or when annuat impairment testing for an asset 1s required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and 1s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value i use cannot be
estimated to be close to its farr value In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset or cash-generating unit 1s considered impaired and 1$ wnitten down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value n use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsk specific to the asset Impairment
losses of continuing operations are recognised in those expense categones consistent with the function of the impaired
asset unless the asset 1s camed at a revalued amount (in which case the impairment 1s treated as a revaluation decrease)
An assessment 1Is made at each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication that previously recognised imparment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount I1s estmated, a
previously recogmised impaiment loss 1s reversed only If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last iImpairment loss was recognised If that 1s the case the carrying ameount of the
asset 1s increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impaiment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years  Such reversal
1s recogmsed in profit or loss unless the asset 1s carmed at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase After such a reversal the depreciation charge 1s adjusted in future penods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaiming useful life

{0) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recogrised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis A financial asset 1s derecognised when the Group's contractual nights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the contractual nghis to future cash flows to a third
party A financial hability 1s derecogrised only when the hability 1s extinguished

a Trade and other receivables and other assets

Trade and other recevables and other assets are measured at intial recognition at far value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Appropnate allowances for estimated irecoverable
amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when there I1s objective evidence that the asset i1s
impaired

b Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group
considers all highly iquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a matunty of
ihree months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and in
hand, and short term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less, all of which are available for use by the
Group unless cotherwise stated

c Investments
Investments included as financial assets are valued at fair value and are held as available for sale When available for

sale assets are considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity are reclassified to
the profit or loss 1n the penod
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{0} Financial instruments {continued)
d Financial habiihes and equity

Financial habilites and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into  An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a restdual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its habiites The Group's financial habilities include trade and other payables, bank loans, other
borrowings, convertible loans and obligations under finance feases All financial habilities, are recognised initially at their
far value plus transaction costs that are directly atinbutable to the acquisition or i1ssue of the financial hiability and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting woutd be
nsignificant, in which case they are stated at cost

e Other financial hlabihties

OCther financtal habilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at farr value, net of transaction costs  Other financial
habiliies are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed

f Bank borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct 1ssue costs  Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlerment or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an
accruals basis to the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise

g Trade payables, provisions and other payables

Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at cost Other payables which are interest-bearing are measured
at farr value Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made Provisions are measured at farr value Prowvision has been made n the financial statements for
benefits accruing in respect of sick leave, annual leave, and long service leave

h Compound Financial Instruments

Compound financial instruments 1ssued by the group comprise convertible loan notes that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of shares to be 1ssued does not vary with changes in therr far value

The hability component of a compound financial instrument 1s recognised imtizlly at the fair value of a similar hability that
does not have an equity conversion cption The equity component 1s recogmsed imbizlly at the difference between the far
value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the far value of the liability component Any directly
attnbutabte transaction costs are allocated to the habiity and equity components in proportton to their inttial carrying
amounts

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a financial instrument 1s measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest methed The equity component of a compound financial instrument 1s not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry

(p) Financing costs and interest income

Fmancing costs comprnse interest payable on borrowings and finance lease payments and interest income which s
calculated using the effective interest rate method

{a) Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there 1s objective evidence that financial assets, other than those at
farr value through profit or loss, are impaired The impairment loss of financial assets carned at amortised cost 15
measured as the dfference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estirnated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective interest rate

{r) Share Capital
Ordinary shares are recorded at nominal value and proceeds recewed in excess of nominal value of shares 1ssued, If any,
are accounted for as share premium Both ordinary shares and share premuum are classified as equity Costs incurred

directly to the 1ssue of shares are accounted for as a deduction from share premium, otherwise they are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the penod compnses cument and deferred tax  Tax 1s recognised In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case 1t 1s
recogmsed In equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the penod, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable n respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not provided for
the miial recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than 1n a business
combination, and differences relating to nvestments in subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of assets and labilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset I1s recogrused only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utiised

(t) Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for granting share options, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible employees of the Group The cost of share options granted 1s measured by reference to the far value
at the date at which they are granted

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in the assumplions about the number of options expected to
vest The total expense i1s recogmsed over the vesting penod, which 1s the penod over which all the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied

At the end of each reporting penod, the group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions It recognises the impact of the revision to the onginal estimate, If any, in the
statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to equity

When the optiens are exercised, the company issues new shares The proceeds received net of any direclly atirbutable
transactions costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

{u) Contingent habilities and contingent assets

A contingent hability 15 a possible obligation that anses from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nat wholly within the control of the Group [t can
also be a present obligation ansing from past events that 1s not recogrised because 1t 1s not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannct be measured reliably

A contingent liability 1s not recognised but s disclosed in the notes to the accounts When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that the outflow 1s probable, it will then be recognised as a provision

A contingent asset 1s a possible asset that anses from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits
Is probable When an inflow i1s virtually certain, an asset 1s recognised
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Leased assets

Operating fease Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense  profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

Finance lease Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in profit or loss

(w) Employee benefits
a  Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed in profit or loss as the
related service 1s provided

b  Long-term employee benefits

Obligations in respect of long-term employee benefils such as long service feave 1s the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned n return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit 1s discounted to determine
its present value

c Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recogrised as an expense when the Group I1s demonstrably commuitted, without realistic
probability of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to erther terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense If the company has made an offer encouraging voluntary
redundancy, it 1s probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be measured reliably
Benefits faling due more than 12 months if the reporting date are discounted to their present value
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4 Turmover and Segmental Analysis

All tumover in the Group in the current and pnor year 1s denved from the sales to the one customer, which 1s included in
the Gold mining segment

Unattnbuted
2012 Head Office Gold Other
Costs Mining Activity Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover - 54,925 - 54,925
Mining - {35,686) - {35,686)
Processing - {10,281) - {10,281)
Gold duty - (1,660) - (1,660)
Overheads - (5,917 - {5,917)
Cost of sales - {53,544) - (53,544)
Gross Profit - 1,381 - 1,381
Administrative expenses {1,769} (829) {164) (2,762)
Foreign exchange gans - 1,334 - 1,334
Depreciation and amortisation {1,971) (4,560) 20) (6,551)
Underlying operating loss {3,740) (2,674) (184) (6,598)
Impaiment - - - -
Inventory cbsolescence wnite back - a7 - 47
Gain on disposal of assets - 27 27
Rehahilitation credit - 45 - 45
Provision for doubtful debt - (993) - {(993)
Share based payments (360) (267) - (627)
Operating loss {4,100) (3,815) (184) {(8,099)
interest receivable and other income 53 12 - 65
Interest payable and similar charges {51) (54) (6} (111)
Net loss before taxation {4,008} (3,857) {190) (8,145)
Taxation 1,075 - - 1,075
Loss for the penod (3,023) (3,857) {190} {7,070)
Other Segment Items
Additions to intangible assets - 4,164 - 4,164
Additions to property, plant, and equipment - 7,245 - 7,245
Additions to mine properties and development - 4,952 - 4,952
Current assets 502 15,856 233 16,591
Non currents assets 29,437 44 447 185 74,069
Current habiliies (192) (12,114) (9) {12,315)
Non current habilities (7,074) (3336) - {10,410)
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4 Turnover and Segmental Analysis {continued)
Unattrnbuted
2011 Head Office Gold Other
Costs Mining Activity Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover - 47,964 - 47,964
Mining - {29,731} - {29,731)
Processing - (9.144) - (9,144)
Gold duty ; (1,440) . (1,440)
Overheads - (4,403) - (4,403)
Cost of sales . (44,718) - (44,718)
Gross profit - 3,246 - 3,246
Admimistrative expenses (1,880) (244) (177) (2,301)
Foreign exchange gans - 1,592 - 1,592
Depreciation and amortisation expense (2,447) (3,595) (32) (6,074)
Underlying operating (loss} / profit (4,327) 999 (209) (3,537)
Inventory obsolescence write back - 179 - 179
Rehabilitation charge - - - -
Provision for doubtful debt write back - 242 - 242
Share based payments expense (128) (680} - (808)
Operating (loss} / profit {4,455) 740 {209) (3.924)
Interest recevable and other income 83 26 9 98
Interest payable and simifar charges {45) (59) 3) {107)
Net (loss) / profit before taxation (4,437} 707 (203} (3,933
Taxation 1 ,61 8 - - 1 .618
{Loss) / profit for the peniod (2,819) 707 (203) {2.315)
Other Segment ltems
Additions to intangible assets - 2,667 - 2,667
Additions to property, plant, and equipment - 6521 1 6,532
Additions to mine properties and developrment - 1,898 - 1,898
Current assets 5,122 17,555 43 22,720
Non currents assets 31,351 32,946 248 64,545
Current habilities (197} (6,250) 9 (6,456)
Non current habilities (8,116) {4,155) - (12,271)
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5 Cost of sales
Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Mining (35,686) (29,731)
Metallurgy (10,281) (9,144)
Gold duty (1,660) (1,440)
Bullion assay (147) (141)
Technical Services (823) (421)
Resource engineenng {1,030) (1,028)
Supply and secunty (726) (623)
Human resources (88) (78)
Community & Housing {1,256) (1,112)
Safety training and environment {491) {292)
Mine general administration (1,356) _{708)
(53,544) {44,718)
6 Operating loss
Group
2012 201
£'000 £'000
Qperating loss 1s stated after charging
- Auditors’ remuneration
Audit-related assurance services - Current year 86 97
Audit-related assurance services - Prior year under provision 25 128
Taxation compliance services 12 10
Non-audit services - Intenm review 10 10
Non-audit services - Other 2 5
Auditors’ remuneration payable to subsidiary auditors 29 24
- Share based payments expense granted by the Company 627 808
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,991 3,140
— Depreciation of mining properties and development 566 432
- Amortisation of intangible assets 1,994 2,502
- Inventory obsclescence write back 47 179
- Operating lease expenses motor vehicles 41 135
- Operating lease expenses mimng 17 34
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7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (inctuding directors) employed by the Group duning the year was

Group 2012 2011
Number Number

Productive labour 1,261 1,013
Office and management 197 137
1,458 1,150

Employment costs 2012 2011
£'000 £000

Wages and salanes 10,518 7,926
Social secunty 624 509
Share based payments expense 627 808
11,769 9,243

Directors' remuneration 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

| C Orr-Ewing €0 60
D K Paxton 167 170
K C Morzara 128 118
DA Lemigas * ) 45
J | Stalker 59 97
J F Kearney 24 24
J A MacPherson 25 24
471 539

*D A Lenigas stepped down as an executive director in Apnil 2011, and was appointed as a non-executive director On 4"
January 2012, D A Lemgas resigned as a director

Directors’ remuneration in 2012 solely consisted of salanes, and as at 31 August 2012 (2011 nil) there were no directors

accruing benefits under a money pension scheme  No options were granted to directors duning the year, and no ophtions
were exercised by the directors
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8 Interest receivable/payable and simtar charges

Interest receivable and other income 2012 2011
£'000 £000

Bank nterest 65 94
Other - 4
65 98

Interest payable and similar charges 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Interest and bank charges 14 18
Interest on convertible loan notes 51 45
Unwinding of discount for mine rehabilitation 46 44
111 107

9 Taxation

2012 2011
£000 £000
Current taxation - -
Deferred taxation - effect of change n tax rate (622) (1,006)
Deferred taxation - current year {453) {612)
(1,075) {1,618)
Factors affecting tax charge
(Loss) / profit before tax (8,145) (3,933)
Tax at 25 17% (2011 27 17%) (2,050) (1,069)
Effects of
- Non deductible expenses 595 161
- Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was recognised 556 556
- Rate adjustment (1,691) (998)
- Tax effect of ncome not subject to income Tax 1,516 {268)
{1,075) {1,618)

The deferred taxation credit anses on the release of the deferred tax hability (note 32)

The Finance Act 2012, which was substantively enacted on 17 July 2012, has reduced the main corporation tax rate to
24% from 1 Apnl 2012 and to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 The further decrease fo 21% or lower from 1 Apnl 2014 15 not
expected to be substantively enacted until a future Finance Bill 1s approved This reduction has not been taken tnto
account when calculating deferred tax assets and liabilities at present The changes are not expected to have a matenal
cash impact on the Company

The Group has estimated tax benefits in respect of tax losses of £1,704,000 (2011 £4,595,000), of which £665,000 will
fully expire within 4 years, and other net deferred tax benefits in respect of temporary differences of £1,764,000 (2011
£685,000) which have not been recognised as a deferred tax asset

10 Loss for the year

The Company's loss for the year dealt within the accounts of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc was £587,094 (2011 £2,391,889)

As provided by S408 of the Companies Act 2006, no Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 presented in respect of
Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
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11 Loss per share

a Basic

The calculation of consolidated loss per share 1s based on the following loss and number of shares

2012 2011

£000 £000

Loss after tax {7,070) {2,315)
2012 2011

Number Number

Basic weighted average ordinary shares in 1ssue during the period 90,509,159 84,015,905
2012 2011

Pence Pence

Basic loss per share {7 81) {2 76)

Basic loss per share 1s calculated by dwviding the loss for the year from continuing operations of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue duning the year

b Diluted

All potential shares were anti-dilutive as the Group was in a loss making position As a result diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 August 2012 and 31 August 2011 s disclosed as the same value as basic loss per share The diluted
weighted average crdinary shares in 1ssue dunng the penod was 90,509,159(2011 84,015,905)

2012 2011

£000 £'000

Loss after tax (7,070) (2,315)

Interest expense on convertible loan note (net of tax) - -

Loss used to determine diluted earnings per share (7,070) (2,315)

2012 2011

Number Number

Basic wetghted average ordinary shares in issue durning the penod 90,509,159 84,015,905
Adjustments for

Assumed conversion of convertible loan note - -

Share options / warrants - -

Diluted weighted average ordinary shares in issue dunng the period 90,509,159 84,015,805

2012 2011

Pence Pence

Diluted loss per share (781) (2 76)

Subsequent 1o the year end, the company tssued an additiona!l 20,000,000 new ordinary shares in a private placing
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12 Intangible assets

Mining Computer Exploration

Rights Software expenditure Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2011 38,414 243 2,769 41,426
Additions - - 4,164 4,184
Disposals - - {(111) {111)
Transferred from Property, plant and equipment 307 289 - 606
Exchange difference - 9 111 120
As at 31 August 2012 38,721 551 6,833 46,205
Amortisation
As at 1 September 2011 7.313 56 - 7,369
Current charge 1,971 23 - 1,994
Exchange difference - 1 - 1
As at 31 August 2012 9,284 80 - 9,364
Carrying value as at 31 August 2012 20,437 471 6,933 36,841

Mining Computer Exploration

Rights Software expenditure Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 38,414 140 36 38,580
Additions - - 2,667 2,667
Transferred from tangible assets - 97 27 124
Exchange difference - 6 39 45
As at 31 August 2011 38,414 243 2,769 41,426
Amortisation
As at 1 September 2010 4,866 - - 4 866
Current charge 2,447 55 - 2,502
Exchange difference - 1 - 1
As at 31 August 2011 7,313 56 - 7,369
Carrying value as at 31 August 2011 31,101 187 2,769 34,057

The Mining nghts represent the mining nghts acquired on the acquisition of the Vatukoula Gold Mine in Apnl 2008 The
amortisation of the Mining Rights 1s calculated on a unit of production basis, based on farecast production and the total
Minerai Reserves At the current production, reserves and gold pnce, the econormic useful iife 15 expected to be 7 years
This rate will vary from year to year and 1s dependent on the minera! reserves which are reassessed every year
Amortisation i1s ncluded in depreciation and amortisation in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The directors believe that there have been no indicators of impairment for the year ended 31 August 2012 {(and 31 August
2011)

A deferred tax liability of £10,757,000 arose 1n 2008 in respect of the intangible assets recogrised on the acquisition in the
prior pengds The deferred tax habilty 1s 1in respect of future taxable profits potentially generated from the exploration of
the mining nghts (Note 32)

The Exploration expendiiure 1s an internally generated intangible asset, and represents costs associated with the
exploration and evatuation of mineral deposits on our mning and special prospecting licenses and are capitalised in
accordance with [FRS 6 The directors believe that there have been no indicators of impairment for the year ended 31
August 2012 (and 31 August 2011)
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12 Intangible assets (continued)

The Computer Software expenditure represents the costs associated with the purchase of specialised mining and
inventory software

13 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Fixtures
and fittngs
leasehold Work in Plant and Motor Mine and
land progress machinery vehicles assets equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2011 1,165 201 28,087 370 2,869 148 32,840
Additions - 7,245 - - - - 7,245
Transferred on completion 20 {4.607) 4,517 - - - -
Disposals - - (122) - - - (122)
Changes in estimates - - - - {932) - (932)
Transferred to intangible (250) (299) - - - - (549)
Exchange difference 19 32 984 (29) 61 (3) 1,064
As at 31 August 2012 1,024 2,572 33,466 341 1,998 145 39,546
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 September 2011 - - 8,643 251 315 a8 9,307
Charge for the penod 13 - 3,835 2 139 2 3,991
Disposals - - (27) - - - {27}
Exchange difference - - 570 (15) 9 (2) 562
As at 31 August 2012 13 - 13,021 238 463 98 13,833
Net book value
At 31 August 2012 1,011 2,572 20,445 103 1,535 47 25,713
At 31 August 2011 1,165 201 19,444 119 2 554 50 23,533
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13 Property plant and equipment {continued)

Freehold Fixtures
and fitings
leasehold Work in Plant and Motor Mine and
land progress machinery vehicles assets equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 1,134 2,881 18,399 405 3,086 148 25,053
Additions - 6,521 1 10 - - 6,532
Transferred on completion - (9,172) 9,172 - - - -
Disposals - - - (53) - (1) (54)
Revaluation - - - - (331) - (331)
Transfer to Mine Properties
and development - - {946) - - - (946)
Transferred to intangible - 97} - - - - (97)
Exchange difference 3 68 1,461 8 114 1 1,683
As at 31 August 2011 1,165 201 28,087 370 2,869 148 32,840
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 September 2010 - - 4,793 287 154 96 5,330
Charge for the penod - - 2,976 8 183 3 3,140
Disposals - - - (48) - (1) (49)
Transfer to Mine Properties
and development - - (32) - - - (32)
Transferred to intangible - - 27 - - - 27
Exchange difference - - 879 4 8 - 891
As at 31 August 2011 - - 8,643 251 315 98 9,307
Net book value
At 31 August 2011 1,165 201 19,444 119 2,554 50 23,533
At 31 August 2010 1,134 2,881 13,606 118 2,932 52 20,723
Freehold
land Total
Company £'000 £000
Cost
As at 1 September 2011 250 250
Transfers to Investments in subsidianes {250) (250)
As at 31 August 2012 - -
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 September 2011 and as at 31 Auvgust 2012 - -
Net book value
At 31 August 2012 - -
At 31 August 2011 250 250
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 and as at 31 August 2011 250 250
Net hook value
At 31 August 2011 250 250
At 31 August 2010 250 250
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14 Mine properties and development

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cost
Balance as at 1 September 8,695 5,614
Additions 4,952 1,898
Transfers from Property, Plant and Equipment - 946
Exchange dfference 218 237
Balance at end of period 13,865 8,695
Depreciation
Balance as at 1 September 1,740 1,227
Current charge 566 432
Transfers from Property, Plant and Equipment - 32
Exchange difference 44 49
Balance at end of pericd 2,350 1,740
Carrying value
Balance at end of period 11,515 6,955

During the current year the company invested £ 4,952,000 (2011 £1,898,000) in underground capital development

15 Available for sale investments

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 400 477 400 400
Whitten off - (77) - -
As at 31 August 400 400 400 400
Provision for diminution in value
As at 1 September {400) (477) (400) (400)
Written off - 77 - -
As at 31 August (400) (400) {400) (400)
Net book value at 31 August - - - -

Available for sale investments constitute holdings in the following entitres
Country of Pnncipal

Name of business incorporation activities % held
Lesotho Diamonds Corporation Gibraltar Mining 05

In Aprit 2007, the Company acquired 1,212,121 new ordinary shares in Lesotho Diamond Corporation for £400,000 The
company was subsequently renamed Global Diamonds Resources (*GDR") Operations ceased at the mine due to a lack
of funding on the 5" of January 2010 Dunng the prior year GDR has gone into hquidation and therefore the Directors of
the Company thought it was appropnate to continue to provide fully for this nvestment

In the year ended 31 August 2003, Rwver Diamonds Lid, a wholly owned subsidiary of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc

purchased £77,000 of new ordinary shares in Cambnan Forestry Products In 2004 the Company provided fully for this
investment as it was undergoing restructuring On 14 Apnl 2009 Cambnan Forestry Products was dissolved
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15 Available for sale investments {continued}

These investments were nitially measured at cost This 1s because the directors consider that its far value cannot be
measured rehably as the investments are not quoted on an active market

16 Investment in subsidiary companies

Company

2012 2011

£000 £000
Cost
As at 1 September 48,539 39,489
Transfers from Property, plant and equipment 250 -
Additions in the year Share based payments to subsidiary companies 267 664
Additions in the year Equity capital contnbution 2,249 8,386
Balance as at 31 August 51,305 48,5639
Impairment
As at 1 September 1,810 1,810
Charge for the year - -
Balance as at 31 August 1,810 1,810
Net book value
Balance as at 31 August 49,495 46,729
Details of the subsidianes

Country of Pnncipal

Name of business incorporation activities held
Viso Gero International Inc BvI Holding company 100
Vatukoula Gold Pty Ltd Australia Holding company 100
Vatukoula Austraha Australia Holding company 100
Vatukoula Finance Pty Ltd Australia Holding company 100
Koula Miming Company Fip Dormant 100
Jubilee Mining Company Fip Dormant 100
Vatukoula Gold Mine Ltd Fi Mining 100
River Diamonds UK Ltd England & Wales Holding Company 100
Panguma Diamonds Ltd Sterra Leone Dormant 100
S&o Carlos Minerag&o Limitada * Brazil Exploration 100

* The investment in this entity 1s held by River Diamonds UK Ltd, a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company

Investments in subsidiary companies are measured at cost, less accumulated provisions for impairments
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17 Inventories
Group

2012 2011

£'000 £000
Consumables stores 5,990 5,003
Allowances for inventory obsolescence (278) (430)
Total consumables stores 5712 4,573
Insurance spares 22 249
Allowances for obsolescence (22) _(249)
Total insurance spares - .
Gold in circuit and gold stock 2,059 3.461
As at 31 August 7,771 §,034

A reversal of a wnte-down of inventories amounted to £46,726 (2011 £178,811) Inventory previously been wntten off has

been reassessed as useful for production

18 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade recevables 2,131 2,088 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 24,260 16,735
Prepayments 3,050 3,917 120 57
Other receivahles 5,115 4,650 552 740
10,296 10,655 24,932 17 532

Less Prowision for doubtful debts (3,913) (2.861) (500) (500)
6,383 7.794 24,432 17,032

Trade receivables are amounts due from the sales of gold The average credit penod taken on sales of goods 1s two

weeks (2011 two weeks)

The provision for doubtful debis includes £2 5 millien (2011 £2 5 millon) in relation to the prepayments against the
claimed tax habiities of F$ 11 5 milion by The Fin Islands Revenue & Customs Authonty The prepayment ceased in
December 2008 and none have been made since this date However, given the time the court case has been outstanding
and that currently there 1s no date in the court dianes for this matter to be heard it was thought prudent that the Company
provide for any prepayments made in relation to this tax assessment The Fij Islands Revenue & Customs Authority has

recognised the prepayment of the claimed tax hability
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18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group has significant concentration of credit nsk with its single customer in respect of bullion sales The Group has
credit nsk management policies 1n place and exposure to credit nsk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis Management
generaily adopts conservative strategies and tight control in credit policy

The following table provides an analysis of trade and other receivables that were past due as at 31 August 2012, but not
provided for, followed by those past due and impaired Subsequent to the year, all trade recewvables of over 93 days have
been pard The Group beheve that all the balances are ultimately recoverable

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Not impaired
Due 0-31 days 3,807 2,743 52 241
Past due 32-62 days 265 244 - -
Past due 63 — 92 days 23 568 - -
Past due more than 93 days 158 322 - -
4,253 3,877 52 241
Impaired
Past due more than 93 days 2,994 2,861 500 500
Provision for doubtful debts (2,994) {2.861) (500) (500}
4,253 3,877 52 241

The credit qualty of the Group’s customers 18 momitored on an ongaing basis and assessed for impairment where
indicators of such iImpairment exist

The movement in prowision for doubtful debts has been credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, after
eliminating a foreign exchange gain ansing on consolidation to the amount of £58,000

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,437 6,892 270 4,774
2,437 6,892 270 4774

At 31 August 2012 management believes that the carrying amount of cash equivalents approximates to fair value because
of the short matunty of these financial instruments
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20 Share capital

{a) Share capital

Group and Company

{a) Share Captal
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
86,558,338 ordinary shares of 5p each
(31 Aug 2011 87,558,339 ordinary shares of 5p each) 4 828 4,378
(b) Share 1ssues during the year
Value of
Issue Par value Share shares
value per per premium Share Share 1ssued for
Share Share  per Share Shares Captal premium cash
Date £ £ £ £ £ £
Shares 1ssued
for cash
Issue for cash 03/05/2012 060 005 055 9,000,000 450,000 4,950,000 5,400,000

9,000,000 450,000 4,950,000 5,400,000
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20 Share capital (continued)
(c} Warrants and options (continued)
The following main conditions apply to all options and warrants currently on 1ssue and granted dunng the year

Management options vest over 3 years from date of grant, however should the grantee resign or be dismissed pnor to the
first anmiversary of his or her employment the optons will cease Directors’ options vest immediately and there are no
performance conditions assoctated with the options

Warrants were granted to professional advisors i lieu of services All the warrants vested immediately on grant

The ophions granted during the year to directors, staff and advisors were as follows

+ On 8 February 2012 — 360,000 options to the mine management in Fip Each option carnes the nght to subscribe for 1
ordinary share of £0 05 each in the caprtal of the Company at a price of £0 70, exercisable up to five years after the
commencement of employment with the Company, and

s On B February 2012 - 800,000 options to strategic advisors Each option carries the rnight to subscribe for 1 ordinary
share of £0 05 each in the capital of the Company at a price of £1 75, exercisable up to 3 years after the grant date of
the option, and

» On 24 Apnl 2012 — 9,000,000 options to a strategic investor Each option cames the nght to subscribe for 1 ordinary
share of £0 05 each In the capital of the Company at a price of £0 77 The ophtions expired on 23 July 2012

The total share-based payment expense in the year for the Group was £627,388 (2011 £807,582), and 7,480,445 (2011
6,347,112) options are exercisable at the year end No options were forfeiled dunng the year (2011 NIL)

The following table lists the inputs used for the option 1ssues which occurred during the year

Grant date 08/02/2012 08/02/2012 24/04/2012
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatiity 65% 65% 65%
Risk-free interest rate 175% 275% 1 75%
Expected Iife of 5 years 3 years 3 months
options

Exercise price £070 E175 £077
Price at grant date £0 89 £0 89 £0 52

The model used to arnve at the fair value of all the options granted dunng the year was the Black Scholes option pncing
model The weighted average farr value of the options granted dunng the current year was determined as £0 05 per
option

The weighted average remaining contractual Iife of the 8 4 rmilhon options outstanding at the balance sheet date 15 23
years (2011 3 4 years) The weighted average share pnce durihg the year was £0 59 (2011 £1 59) per share

The expected volatility of the options reflects the assumption that histonical volatility 1s indicative of future trends, which
may not necessanly be the actual outcome The expecled life of the options 1s based on historical data available at the
time of the option 1ssue and 1s not necessanly indicative of future trends, which may not necessanly be the actual
outcome

The share option scheme and the warrants on i1ssue s an equity settted plan and farr value 1s measured at the grant date
of the option
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21 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Trade payables 9,828 4,066 51 80
Accruals and other payables 225 163 142 117
10,053 4,229 193 197
22 Provisions
Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Current
Provision for annual leave 272 224
Provision for workers compensation 137 63
Other employee related provisions 664 377
1,073 664
Non current
Provision for mine rehabilitation 3,247 4,092
Provision for Long Service Leave 73 49
3,320 4141
4,393 4,805
Employee
related Mine Long Service
provistons  rehabilitation Leave Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2011 664 4,092 49 4,805
Additiona! provisions made dunng the penod 2,795 - 77 2,872
Reversed dunng the penod {2,406) {46) (55) (2,507)
Unwinding of discount - 46 - 46
Changes In estimates - (832 - (932)
Exchange difference 20 87 2 109
Balance at 31 August 2012 1,073 3,247 73 4,393
Employee
related Mine Long Service
provisions rehabilitation Leave Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at 1 September 2010 528 4,220 - 4,748
Additional provisions made dunng the penod 190 - 49 239
Reversed durng the period @ - 4)
Unwinding of discount - 44 - 44
Changes in estimates - (331} - (331)
Exchange difference {50) 159 - 109
Balance at 31 Aug 2011 664 4,092 49 4,805
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22 Provisions (continued)

Employee related provisions include a provision for unpaid annual leave based on Fipan labour legislation, and a provision
for legally required workers compensation relating to work injunes Based on current estmates, these are expected to
realise in approximately 10 years

The prowision for mine rehabihitation represents the current mine closure plan The present value of the estimated cost I1s
capitalised as property, plant and equipment Over time the discounted hability will be increased for the change in the
present value based on the discount rates that reflect the current market assessments and the nsks specific to the liability
The provision for Mine Rehabilitation 1s expected to be expensed over the life of mine which 1s currently 7 years (2011 11
years} The Uife of mine 1s dependent on the economic viability of extracting the contained Mineral Resources and may
vary on a year by year basis dependant on the mining / processing costs and the pnce of Gold In addition the quantum of
the provision may vary on a year by year basis dependant on the costs associated with executing the Mine Rehabilitation
Plan

Long service leave 1S a contractual obligation for additional leave days eamed by employees with 10 years or more
service Based on current estimates, these are expected to realise in approximately 10 years

23 Borrowings

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Current
Finance lease habiity (note 30) - 5

Finance lease hability
The finance lease hability 1s secured by master lease agreement and a charge over leased assets

The finance lease 1s repayable by monthly instalmenits of £987 and interest 1s being charged at the rate of 14% per annum
and was fully repaid in January 2012
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24 Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Current
Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund 1,189 1,668
1,189 1,558
Non Current
Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund 15 13
15 13

The Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund (“VSATF") was established for the purpose of social assistance for the
employees made redundant by the previous mine operater and the focal mining community in accordance with the Trust

Deed dated 18 December 2009

The VSATF s part of the Vatukoula Trust Deed, a binding contract between the Company's wholly owned subsidiary and
the Fipan Ministry of Lands and Mineral Resources A total of F$8million 1s payable of which the Group paid F$1 5 million
on 10 March 2010 and F$1 125 milion on 31 December 2011

Current and Non Current Liabilities as follows

The remaining F$3 375 millon has been allocated to

F$'000 £'000
Current

Redundancy payment due within 1 year 3,325 1,189
3,325 1,189

Non Current
Instalments according to Trust Deed due more than 1 year 50 18
50 18
3,375 1,207

The non current portion of the hability has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows at £15,000
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25 Convertible loans

)] On 26 June 2009, the Group tssued a fully redeemable converlible loan note for £485,000 repayable in cash 5
years after the date of grant The loan note cames a coupon rate of 11% per annum The loan note will be
converlible at £0 50 equating to 970,000 shares in Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc  Dunng the year no convertible 1oan
notes were converted fo ordinary shares Dunng 2011 £25,000 of these convertible lcan notes were converted to
50,000 new ordinary shares in the Company, £2,500 was credited to ordinary share capital and £22,500 was
credited to share premium £8,000 has been debited from the equity component upon conversion

The net proceeds from the 1ssue of the convertible loans have been spht between the liabiity element and an equity

component as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Norminal value 362 386
Equity component {45) {45)
317 341

{n) The movement in the liability component of the convertible loan note 1s as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011

£°000 £'000
Balance at 1 September KZY 332
Conversion of loan notes - (25)
Released into equity on conversion 2
Unwind discounted present value of ltability 9 8
Pnncipal interest 42 37
Interest paid (75) (13)
Balance at 31 August 317 3N

76




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2012

26 Financial instruments and nsk management objectives and policies

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line tems below

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
l.oans and receivables

Trade and other receivables 4,253 3,877
Cash and cash equivalents 2,437 65,892
6,690 10,769
£'000 £'000

Financial habilibes measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 9,828 4,066
Borrowings - 5
Convertible loan notes 317 341
10,145 4,412

Company
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables 172 297
Cash and cash equivalents 270 4,774
442 5,071
£'000 £'000

Financial llabihties measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 51 80
Convertible loan notes 317 cz1l
368 421

Loans and receivables are measured using the amortised cost method Available for sale financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently remeasured to fair value at each year end, with any change in value recognised
directly in equity, unless the instruments are unable to be reliably fair valued, in which case they are stated at cost

The Group and Company's activities expose It to a vanety of financial nsks, currency nsk, credit nsk, hquidity nsk and cash
flow interest rate nsk The policies for managing these nisks are regularly reviewed and agreed by the Board |t s, and
has been throughout the period under review, the Group and Company's policy that no trading in financiat instruments
should be undertaken

m Currency rate nsk

Loans between companies which are members of the Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc  group are made in the operating
currency of the tending company 1In all other respects, the policy for all group compantes s that they only trade n their
prnincipal operating currency, except in exceptional arcumstances from time to time

The Group's revenue denves from the sale of gold bullion by its Fijian operating subsidiary Proceeds of gold bullion sales
are received in US Dollars  As the group reports in Sterling, reported revenue is affected by the combination of changes in
the US Dollar/Firan Dollar and Sterling/Fijian Dollar rates
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26 Financial instruments and nisk management objectives and policies (continued)

)] Currency rate nsk {continued)

The Group's expenses in Fip and Brazil are incurred in Fii Dollars and Reals respectively Any weakening in the Fipan
Dollar/Reals would result in a reduction in expenses In Sterling terms, which would be to the Group’s advantage There i1s
an equivalent downside nsk to the group of strengthening in the Fipan Dollar/Reals which would increase Brazihan
operating expenses n Stering terms  The following table illustrates the allocation of financial instruments across

currencies

2012

2011

£ Brazihan Austrahian us Fip
Sterling Real Dollar Dollar Dollar

Class £000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000

£ Brazilan

Sterling
£000

Real
£'000

Australian
Doltar

£'000

us
Dollar

£'000

Fii
Dollar
£'000

Financial
assets

Trade

recevables 172 29 -
Cash and

cash

equivalents 301 195 29 171 1,741

2,102 -

298

4,805

36

19

2,052

559

1,508

Financial

liabilities

Trade

payables 74 6 2,244 146 7,363

Borrowings - - - - -

Convertible
loan notes 317 - - - -

56

341

15

3,964

The following table illustrates the Group's sensitivity to the fluctuation of the major currencies in which it transacts A 15%
increase has been applied to each currency in the table below, representing management's assessment of a reasonably

possible change in fereign exchange rates

Group

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Financial assets
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increase 1n Fyian Dollar fx rate against Sterling 261 226
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Finan Dollar fx rate aganst Steriing (261) (226)
Impact on profit after tax an 15% increase in Reals fx rate against Sterfing 34 6
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Reals fx rate against Sterling {34) (8)
Financial habilities
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increase 1n Fyian Dollar fx rate aganst Sterling (1,103} (595)
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Fipan Dollar fx rate against Sterling 1,103 595

Impact on profit after tax on 15% mncrease n Reals fx rate aganst Sterling
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Reals fx rate against Sterling

4]

(1

For currency rate nsk, the Company's exposure 15 considered to not be significant because as it does not held any

financial Instruments denominated in foreign currencies and therefore quantitative information has not been provided

() Interest rate nsk

interest rate exposure anses maimly from cash holdings Contractual agreements entered into at floating rates expose the
entity to cash flow nsk whilst the fixed rate borrowings expose the entity to far value nsk
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26 Financial instruments and sk management objectives and policies (continued)

The table below shows the Group's financial assets and liabilties split by those beanng fixed and floating rates and those
that are non-interest beanng

2012 2011
Non- Non-
interest interest
Fixed Floating Fixed
Class/categones Floating rate rate bearing rate rate bearing
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets

Trade recewvables - - 2,131 - - 2,088
Other recevables - - 4,252 - - 5,708
Cash and cash equivalents 2,437 - - 6,892 - -

Financial habilities
Trade payables - - 9,828 - - 4,065
Accruals - - 225 - - 163
Finance lease ability - - - - 5 -
Convertible loan notes - 317 - - 341 -

The farr value of all financial instruments 1s approximately equal to book value due to their short term nature and the fact
that they bear interest at floating rates based on the local bank rate

If interest rates had been 1% higherflower and all other vanables held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
August 2012 would increase/decrease by £46,645 (2011 loss would increase/decrease by £93,853 )

For interest rate nsk, the Company's exposure 1s considered to not be signficant as it only holds cash and cash
equivalents at a floating rate and therefore quantitative information has not been provided

(m)y  Credit nsk

Credit nsk arises from trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents Credit exposure 1s measured on a Group and
Company basis The Group and Company's maximum exposure to credit risk relating to its financial assets 1s given In
Note 18

{v)  Gold price nsk

The Group's policy 1s to sell gold at spot  The Group 1s exposed to gold price nsk through gold pnce fluctuations

An increase/decrease of 25% n the spot price of gold at 31 August 2012, with all other variables held constant, would
have the following impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and equity at 31 August 2012

Statement of
Comprehensive Income
and equity impact

Increasel/{decrease)

£'000

25% increase n the gold spot pnce 13,668
25% decrease in the gold spol price {13,668)

{v) Ligquidity nsk

Responsibility for hquidity nsk management rests with the board of directors, which has established appropriate liquidity
nsk frameworks for the management of the Group's and Company’s short, medium and long term funding and hguidity
management requirements The Group and Company manages hquidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching matunty profiles of financial assets and liabilttes
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26 Financial instruments and nsk management objectives and policies (continued)
v) Liguidity nsk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s matunty profiles of its financial assets and liabilities The table has been drawn up

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial habilities based on the earfiest date on which the Group can be required
to pay The table includes both interest and pnnciple cash flows

2012 2011
Less than More than Less than More than
one year one year one year one year
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2437 - 6,892 -
Trade and other recewvables 6,383 - 7,794 -
8,820 - 14,686 -

Financial Liabtities
Borrowings - - 5 -
Trade and other payables 10,053 - 4,229 -
Convertible loan notes - 317 - 3N
10,053 317 4,234 341

For iquidity nsk, the Company’s exposure 1s considered to not be significant as its only non-current financial habilty 1s the
convertible loan note and the matunty profile information 1s provided within the Group's analysis above

{viy  Caputal nsk

The Group's capital management objectives (defined as net debt plus equity) are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern n order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, while
maintaining a strong credit rating and headroom whilst optimising return to shareholders through an appropnate balance of
debt and equity funding The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in ight of changes to
economic conditions and the strategic objectives of the company Given the nature of early stage mining operations, the
Group has been predominantly funded by equity However once the mining operations are at a sufficiently advanced stage
the Group may fund further expansion via debt The Group includes within net debt borrowings, convertible loans, trade
and other payables, less cash and short term deposits

2012 2011

£000 £001
Borrowings - 5
Convertible loan 317 3
Trade and other payables 10,053 4,229
Less Cash and cash equivalents (2,437) (6,892}
Net debt/(surplus) 7,933 (2,317)
Equity 67,936 68,538
Net debt/(surplus) plus Equry 75,869 66,221

To mamntain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may 1ssue new shares or return capital shareholders No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes dunng the year ending 31 August 2011 and 31 August 2012 During
the year the Group funded the expansion of the operations at the mine predominantly via the i1ssue of equity The board
thought this was the most appropriate means of funding given the stage of development of the Group, and the rnisks
associated with the development of the Valukoula Gold Mine

27 Ultimate controlling party

There was no ultimate controling party dunng the year
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28 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
Transactions and balances between related parties are set out below

In order to fund the expansion of the operations at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, durning the current year the Company has
loaned an additional £8,184,283(2011 £10,722,033) to the wholly owned Fijlan subsidiary Vatukoula Gold Mines Lid The
total loan has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows by £8,663,942 (2011 £7,920,898),
resulting in a total balance as at 31 August 2012 of £23,248,370 (2011 £15,807,130) The loan charges interest at 0 5%
with effect from 1 September 2011 (2011 0 5%) and is repayable in full on 31 August 2016

Durning the current year, the company has not loaned an addiional amount to Viso Gero Internationa! Inc, a wholly owned
subsichary (2011 £30,522) The loan has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows by £381,366,
(2011 £464,857), resulting in a total balance as at 31 August 2012 of £1,011,170 (2011 £ 927,679) The loan charges
interest at 0 5% with effect from 1 September 2011 (2011 0 5%) and 1s repayable in full on 31 August 2016

Buring the current year, the company has loaned an additional amount to River Diamonds (UK) Limited, a whoelly owned
subsidiary, of £382,875 (2011 £128,063) The total balance as at 31 August 2012 1s £Nil (2011 £Nil) The company has
written off £382,875 dunng the year ended 31 August 2012 (2011 £436,847) The loan is interest free and does not have
any fixed repayment penod

During the year, the Company paid consultancy fees in respect of director's fees of £59,000 in (2011 £96,500) to
Promaco Ltd, a company related to J | Stalker, director of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc At the year-end £Nil was payable to
Promaco Ltd (2011 £5,500)

The company deems key management personnel to be both the executive and non-executive directors Remuneration
paid to the executive directors 13 disclosed n note 7

29 Commitments

(a) Details of mining leases and special site nghts held by the Group are as follows

0] On 22 March 2004, the Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd entered inte Special Mining Lease (*SML") agreements with the
Government of Fiji to lease a piece of land in the Province of Ba for the purpose of mining minerals  The terms of
the lease agreement 1s for 20 years ending on 21 March 2025 Vatukoula Gold Mine Ltd has three agreements and
the details are as follows

Mining lease title Lease number

Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd (formerly known as Westech Gold Ltd) under
freehold tille 54

Majonty of the lease 1s owned by Nosomo Landowners The remainder of
SML 1s crown Freehold 85

Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd {formerly known as Westech Gold Ltd) under
freehold title 56

Under the current agreement, rent 1s payable for Lease No 54 and 56 at the rate of F$39,660 (2011 F$78,321) per
annum, which 1s the equivalent of £14,002 (2011 £27,772) Rent payable for Lease No 55 1s F$9,566 (2011 F$19,132)
per annum, which 1s the equivalent of £3,377 (2011 £6,698)

() On 21 March 2008 and 30 June 2008, the Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd entered into Special Prospecting Licenses
(“SPL™ agreements with the Government of Fip  The terms of the lease agreement are as follows

Special Prospecting Lease Number Expiry
SPL1201 21 March 2025
SPL1344 30 June 2013
SPL1360 30 June 2013
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29 Commitments (continued)

Under the current agreement, rent 1s payable for SPL1201 at the rate of F$13,882 (2011 F$13,882) per annum, which 1s
the equivalent of £4,962 (2011 £4,860) Rent payable for SPL1344 1s F$5,332 (2011 F$5,332) per annum, which is the
equivalent of £1,907 (2011 £1,867) Rent payable for SPL1360 1s F$26,437 (2011 F$26,437) per annum, which 1s the
equivalent of £9,454 (2011 £9,256)

{m) Total commitments for future SML and SSR lease rentals, which have not been provided for in the financial
statements, are as follows

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
No later than 1 year 18 20
Later than 1 year an no later than 5 years 198 78
Later than 5 years 181 177
397 275

(b Capital commitments

Capital commitments as at 31 August 2012 amounted to £ 495,728 (2011 £812,000) These commitments are in relation
to projected expenditure on mine properties and development

30 Leases
(a) Operating leases
Details of operating leases held by the Group are as follows

() The Group currently has no operating leases with ANZ for motor vehicles Duning 2011 the group had operating
lease repayable by monthly instalments of F$ 20,245, which was the equivalent of £7,088

n) Total commitments for future motor vehicle lease rentals, which have not been provided for in the financial
statements, are as follows

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Not later than one year - 29

Later than one year and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -

{m) The operating lease I1s secured over the master operating lease agreement over motor vehicles

(b) Finance leases
Details of finance leases held by the Group are as follows

()] The finance lease was fully repaid dunng 2012 {2011 repayable by monthly instalments of £1,082 and interest
charged at the rate of 14% per annum)
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30. Leases (continued)

{n Total future mimmum finance lease payments are payable as follows

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Not later than one year - 5

Later than one year and not later than five years - -

The finance liability was secured by a master lease agreement and a charge over the lease assets and fully repard dunng
2012

a1 Contingent habilities

a The following contingent liabilities are in relation to the Fipan subsidiary
Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Mining bond 4 4
Bankers undertaking 21 207
215 211

Both the mining bond and the bankers undertaking are contingent lrabilities to cover remediation or rehabilitation
costs associated with any environmental breaches of the Special Site Rights There have been no breaches to
date, and depending on future events, it remains uncertan If these liabilties will realise or suffice

b The Fiyi islands Revenue & Customs Authonty (‘FIRCA”) has i1ssued taxation assessments against the Group of
F$11 Smifion The Group does not believe any amounts are payable and i1s defending the clam No amounts have
been provided in the accounts in respect of this clam  As at year end, advance tax payment of F$7 9m has been
made in relation to this The government has recognised the prepayment of the claimed tax hability, however given
the perniod of time these debts have been cutstanding, the Company has taken a prudent view and provided for the
debts (Note 18) The expected timing and amounts of cash outflows remain uncertain

c The Group 1s a plaintiff in several iigations with respect to potental clams of creditors, workers compensation and

industnal action The directors have assessed the likelihood of these claims becoming payable and consider that
this 1s not likely Therefore there are no provision or contingent labilities disclosed for these
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32 Deferred taxation

Movements in deferred taxation dunng the year are as follows

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Balance 1 September 7,776 9,394
Impact of change n tax rate {622) (1,006)
Impact of transfers to mining nghts 57 -
Utiisation charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income {453) (612)
6,758 7,776

The deferred tax hability 1s in respect of the intangible assets recognised in the acquisition in a pnor penod (Note 12)

a3 Post halance sheet events

On 9 November 2012, the Company completed a placing with Zhongrun International Mining Co Lid (*Zhongrun")
whereby Zhongrun has subsenbed for 20,000,000 new ordinary shares in the Company at a price of £0 33 per share, to
raise £6 6 million

On 12 December 2012, the Group signed an agreement with FIRCA 1n relation to a taxation assessment of F$11 Smillion

agamnst the Group Under the agreement FIRCA will retain a proporticn of the advance tax payments made by the Group
and will refund F$2 2 million to the Group, which will be paid by way of instalments over two years
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